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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

In this Annual Report we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and
take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements - written and oral - that we periodically make contain
forwardlooking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans and assumptions, ‘projects’,
‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot
guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe we have been prudent in assumptions.
The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks
or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from
those anticipated, estimated or projected. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Directors’ Report

MM

The Board of Directors hereby submits the reports of the business and operations of your Company (International Conveyors Limited),
along with the Audited Financial Statements, for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
Revenue from operations 7771.50 5143.39
Other Income 936.63 739.83
Total 8714.13 5883.22
Profit/ Loss before Exceptional items and Taxation (390.29) (207.70)
Exceptional items- Income / (Loss) -

Profit/ Loss before Taxation (390.29) (207.70)
Provision for Taxation 159.99 158.02
Net Profit (550.28) (365.72)
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (net of tax) (28.70) 3641.31
Total Comprehensive Income (578.98) 3275.59

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK
Kindly refer to ‘"Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ which forms part of the Annual Report.
3. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between
the end of the financial year and the date of this Report.
4. DIVIDEND

Pursuant to Section 123 read with Companies (Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, your Directors are pleased
to recommend dividend of ¥ 0.05 on Equity Share of ¥ 1/- each (Previous year ¥ 0.05 per share on Equity Share of ¥ 1/- each)
for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the consequent outflow will be ¥ 40.69 Lakhs (Approx) including dividend tax
(Previous year ¥ 40.69 lakhs including dividend tax).

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES
In view of the loss, your Board of Directors does not propose any amount to be transferred to General Reserves during the year
under review.
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6.

10.

11.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2019 stood at ¥ 675 Lakhs. During the year under review, the
Company has not issued any further shares.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

The turnover of the Company for the year amounted to T 7,665 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 4,448 lakhs). However, your Directors are
expecting to achieve better results in coming years.

SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has 3 (Three) wholly owned subsidiaries and 1 (One) step-down subsidiary and 1 (One) Associate Company as on
March 31, 2019, the names of which are mentioned herein below:

1. International Belting Limited

2. Conveyor Holdings Pte. Ltd.

3. International Conveyors America Ltd.

4. International Conveyors Australia Pty Ltd. (Step down subsidiary of Conveyor Holdings Pte. Ltd.)
5. Pure Coke Limited ( Associate of International Belting Limited)

The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the investments made by it in unlisted
subsidiaries and associate companies. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing salient features of Financial Statements of the Subsidiaries and
Associate have been provided in Form No. AOC-1, which forms part of this report.

The Company has a policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ which is disclosed on its website at the following link: http://
www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) of your Company duly audited by the Statutory Auditors M/s. G. P. Agrawal &
Co., Chartered Accountants for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, prepared in compliance with the provisions of Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) and notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India also forms part of this Annual Report.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

Your Company is listed with The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange limited and the Company
has paid the listing fees to each of the said Exchanges.

DIRECTORS & KMP

Pursuant to the provision of Section 196 of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to the approval of the members in the Annual
General Meeting, the Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, re-appointed
Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala (DIN: 00086658) as Managing Director effective from October 1, 2019 for a period of 1 year as
per the terms specified in the draft agreement to be placed before the ensuing AGM.

Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala, Managing Director, Shri Ashok Kumar Gulgulia, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Neha Khandelwal,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of your Company in terms of Section 2(51)
and Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Jinesh Suryakant Vanzara (DIN: 00239574), Shri Kunchala Thirupal Reddy (DIN: 03330182), Shri Lakshmikant Tibrawalla
(DIN: 00423521) and Shri Mahadeo Prasad Jhunjhunwala (DIN: 00567070), Non-Executive Independent Directors will be
completing their first term of five years of independent directorship at the end of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
Shri Colin William Benjamin (DIN: 07093277) will be completing his first term of five years of independent directorship on
February 11, 2020. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act and based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee it is proposed to reappoint them as Non Executive Independent Directors for a second term of five (5)
consecutive years from the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM) upto the conclusion of 51st AGM of
the Company, subject to approval of Members of the Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The terms and conditions
of appointment of independent directors are as per Schedule IV of the Act.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors under section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013
confirming that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies
Act, 2013 Act and that there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent director
during the year.

In terms of the Articles of Association of the Company read with Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sunit Om Prakash
Mehra (DIN: 00359482) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, is proposed to be re-appointed
as Director of the Company from the date of this AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

ii)  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019 and of the Loss of the Company for that period;

iii)  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

iv)  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts of the Company on a ‘going concern’ basis.

v)  The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
control is adequate and operating effectively.

vi)  The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met 4 (Four) times during the Financial Year 2018-19. The details have been provided in the Corporate Governance
Report in terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
which is annexed to this report.

BOARD EVALUATION

According to Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV of
the Companies Act, 2013, a meeting of Independent Directors was held on February 1, 2019 to review the performance of the
Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. The details are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Company has an optimum combination of executive, non-executive and independent directors to maintain the independence
of the Board. As on March 31, 2019, the Board consists of 8(Eight) Directors, 1(one) of whom is executive, 2(Two) of them is
non-executive and rest are independent directors. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in its composition and
size.

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act has
been disclosed in the corporate governance report, which forms part of this report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial control policy and procedure for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial disclosures. The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the Management
Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report.
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17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition of Audit Committee are included in the corporate governance report, which forms part of
this report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.302082E), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with provisions of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, to hold office for a consecutive period of 5 (Five) years from the conclusion of the 44th AGM until the conclusion of the
49th AGM to be held in the year 2022, subject to ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified amendments in the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder with effect from May 7, 2018. Pursuant to the said amendments, the requirement for ratification of
appointment of Statutory Auditors by the Shareholders at every subsequent Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of their
tenure has been done away with. Accordingly, the matter is not taken up before members for consideration.

The Company has received a certificate from M/s. G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants confirming their eligibility to
continue as Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed thereunder. Further M/s. G. P. Agrawal & Co., have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer
Review Board of the ICAI as required under the provisions of Regulation 33 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The auditors’ report does not contain any reservations, qualifications or adverse remarks. The Auditors’ report is attached to the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Rajesh Kumar Shaw & Co., Company Secretaries to conduct secretarial audit of the
Company for the financial year 2018-2019. The Secretarial Auditor's Report does not contain any reservations, qualifications or
adverse remarks and the Secretarial Audit Report (in Form MR-3) forms part of this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management is the process of identification, assessment, and prioritisation of risks followed by coordinated efforts to

minimise, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and / or impact of unfortunate events or to maximise the realisation of
opportunities.

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy which was reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company. The objective of risk management is to have a dynamic and an optimum balance between risk and
return and ensure regulatory compliance and conformity with the Board approved policies, it starts with the identification and
evaluation process which is followed by optimal use of resources to monitor and minimize the risks.

LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The full particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of the Annual Return for the year ended March 31, 2019 pursuant to Sections 92(3) & 134(3)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013 is forming part of the report and is attached separately.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5(1) of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given hereunder:
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SI. Name Designation Remuneration Remuneration | % increase in Ratio of
No paid in the FY in | paid in the FY | remuneration | remuneration
2018-19 2017-18 from previous | to Median
year remuneration
of employee
1 | Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala | | Managing Director 95,00,000 95,00,000 Nil 25.02:1
2 | Shri Ashok Kumar Gulgulia Chief Financial 15,99,200 14,82,250 7.89 4.21:1
Officer
3 | Ms. Neha Khandelwal Company Secretary 2,88,840 2,36,687 22.03 0.76:1
& Compliance
Officer
Percentage increase in remuneration of each Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer in the financial year 2018-19:
Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala  (Managing Director) : Nil
Shri Ashok Kumar Gulgulia (Chief Financial Officer) 7.89
Ms. Neha Khandelwal (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) 22.03
Percentage increase in median remunerations of employees in the financial year 2018-19 - 4.46 %
Explanation of the relationship between average increase in remuneration & Company performance:
The average increase in remuneration is as per the policy of retention of talent.
Key parameters for any variable remuneration of directors:
Except for the Managing Director Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala, no directors have been paid any remuneration as only sitting
fees are paid to them.
Affirmation that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
25. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate governance
requirements laid down in Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A report
on Corporate Governance together with a Certificate from the Statutory Auditor of the Company confirming compliance with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is included as a part of this report.
26. DEPOSITS
Pursuant to Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, the Company
has not accepted any deposit from the public/member during the year.
27. DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Independent Directors have given the necessary declarations to the Company as required under sub-section (6) of Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013.
28. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit committee,
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or
employees, the details of which need to be mentioned in the Board's report.
29. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complies with all applicable secretarial standards.
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30.

31

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

There were no contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with related parties which could be considered material in accordance
with the policy of the Company or materiality of related party transactions, all contracts / arrangements / transactions with
related party were on arm’s length basis. Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of
the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this
report.

POLICY ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Policy on dealing with Related Party Transaction is available on the Company’s website at -http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/
reports/gnrl/Related%20Party%20Policy.pdf .

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

It is the responsibility of the Directors/ Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company to intimate to the Independent Director
about the Company's strategy, operations, product and service offerings, markets, finance, quality etc. to make Independent
Director familiarize with the strategy, operations and functions of the Company.

The details of familiarization programme have been posted in the website of the Company under the link-
http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Familarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Director.pdf .
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information relating to energy conservation, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, required under
Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed to the Board's
Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In pursuant to the provisions of section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has constituted a CSR
Committee. Details of CSR Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The policy is available on the Company’s
Website at - http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/cgr/CorporateSocialResponsibilityPolicy.pdf .

The Company has incurred net loss of ¥ 550.28 Lakhs during the financial year ended March 31, 2019. However, there was no
fund allocation under CSR for the financial year 2018-19 as the Company had incurred losses as per computation of profits
under Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the purpose of eligible expenditure under Corporate Social Responsibility.

VIGIL MECHANISM

In terms of Section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism has been established for Directors and
employees of the Company to report genuine concerns and the same has been displayed on the website of the company at -
http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITON & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013
There were no complaints received and/or disposed off during the year under review.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Directors express their sincere thanks and place on record their deep appreciation for the patronage extended by the
shareholders, valued customers, bankers, government authorities and the investors for their continued support and confidence
in the company. The Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to all employees for the diligence of
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala M.P.Jhunjhunwala

Place : Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658 DIN No. 00567070
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Annexure to the Directors’ Report

Information on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required to be disclosed under
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

1. Company has carried out a close monitoring of the Electricity consumption based on KWH.

2. Company is also upgrading its machinery so that it will consume less power and work in low fluctuation e.g. replaced the
10 HP water pump motor by 7.50 HP, replaced GE-04 20 HP Motor by 15 HP.

3. Continuous upgradation in machineries to enhance productivity so that it will consume less energy and power e.g. 3 Nos

of Air Compressor make to auto start and stop instead of continuous run thus reducing run time by half.

4. The Company is also endeavoring to maintain the optimum combination of energies and always looking for the alternate

sources.

5. Company is gradually replacing the conventional plant light with LED.

Consumption per unit of production for the year 2018-19 :

Particulars (KWH) (% in Lakhs)
Purchased Units from Electricity Board 36,91,310 274.10
Units generated (DG) 23,400 5.66
Total 3714710 279.76
Rate per unit = 1.53
Consumption per meter of manufacture 13.12

The Company presently has in total 5 Wind Mills. All these Wind Mills are generating green energy in the states of Karnataka,
Maharashtra, Gujarat and Telangana and the same is supplied to respective state consumers through state grids. The relevant details

are as follows -

SI. | Product Name Unit of Installed Quantity | Capacity | Value of
No. Capacity / Capacity produced utilised | Production
production 'KWH' 'KWH’ (%) (% in Lakhs)
1. | Wind Mill at Chitradurga Dist., Karnataka KWH 14,00,000 519,399 | 37.10% 13.02
2. | Wind Mill at Panchpatta Dist., Maharashtra KWH 16,00,000 14,82,274 | 92.64% 17.48
3. | Wind Mill at Kutch Dist., Gujarat KWH 47,00,000 26,14,883 | 55.64% 32.16
4. | Wind Mill at Kurnool Dist., Phase - |, Telangana KWH 17,00,000 15,20,598 | 89.45% 32.58
5. | Wind Mill at Kurnool Dist., Phase - |1, Telangana KWH 17,00,000 15,64,290 | 92.02% 22.35

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

The Company continues to use the latest technologies for improving the productivity and quality of its services and products.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO (% in Lakhs)
Foreign exchange used and earned 2018-19 2017-18
a)  Foreign Exchange Earnings 3288.03 1713.94
b)  C.LF. Value of Imports 1656.57 929.02
¢)  Expenditure/Claims etc. in foreign currency 585.28 486.51

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala
Managing Director
DIN No. 00086658

M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00567070

Place : Kolkata
Date : May 30, 2019
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Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

SI. | Particulars Details
No.
1. | Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions Not Applicable
not at arm’s length basis:
2. | Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: | | International Conveyors Australia Pty Ltd
International Conveyors America Ltd., INC
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Purchase and sale of goods.
(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: | | As per normal business practice
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or Goods are sold at market rate on arm’s length basis
transactions including the value, if any:
(e) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not applicable, since the contract was entered into in the
ordinary course of businesss and on arm’s length price.
(f) | Amount incurred during the year International Conveyors Australia Pty Ltd - ¥ 32,05,103
International Conveyors America Ltd, INC - ¥ 18,66,98,699
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
R. K. Dabriwala M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Place : Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658 DIN No. 00567070
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FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
International Conveyors Ltd.
CIN: L21300WB1973PLC028854
Falta SEZ, Sector-11, Near Pump House No.3
Village & Mouza - Akalmegh

Dist. South 24 Parganas, West Bengal - 743504

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by International Conveyors Ltd. (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
March 31, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Company for the financial
year ended on March 31, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA) and the rules made there under;
iii.  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.  The following Regulations (as amended from time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act) :-

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;
e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (upto 10th November, 2018) and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (with effect from 11th November,
2018);
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vi.  Other Laws applicable to the Company namely:
1) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules and standards made thereunder.
2)  Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975.
3)  The Environment Protection Act, 1986 and the rules, notifications issued thereunder.
4)  Factories Act, 1948 and allied State Laws.
5)  The Income Tax Act, 1961
6)  The Central Excise Act, 1944
7)  The Finance Act, 1994

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with all the laws applicable specifically
to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses/Regulations of the following:

i.  Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

ii.  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

I. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors,
Independent Directors and a Women Director.

[I.  Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

[Il.  All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously and recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines as also represented by the
management.

We further report that during the audit period, the company has no specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Rajesh Kumar Shaw & Co
Company Secretaries

Rajesh Kumar Shaw

(Proprietor)

Place : Kolkata ACS No.: 32890 CP No.: 12112
Date : May 30, 2019

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

‘Annexure- A

The Members,

International Conveyors Ltd.

CIN: L21300WB1973PLC028854

Falta SEZ, Sector-11, Near Pump House No.3
Village & Mouza - Akalmegh

Dist. South 24 Parganas, West Bengal - 743504

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viahility of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Rajesh Kumar Shaw & Co.

Company Secretaries

Rajesh Kumar Shaw

(Proprietor)

Place : Kolkata ACS No.: 32890 CP No.: 12112

Date : May 30, 2019
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Form No. MGT-9
Extract of ANNUAL RETURN as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2019
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I |REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) |CIN L21300WB1973PLC028854
ii) |Registration Date 18/06/1973
iii) | Name of the Company International Conveyors Ltd.
iv) |Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares
v) | Address of the Registered Office Falta SEZ, Sector-II, near Pump House No. 3 Village &
Mouza- Akalmegh, Akalmegh-743504
vi) | Contact details 03174222964
vii) | Whether listed company Yes
viii) | Name of Registrar and Transfer Agent Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.
ix) | Address of Registrar and Transfer Agent 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata - 700 001
x) | Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent 2243-5029, 2248-2248
1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
SI. No. | Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Product/ service of the company
1. |PVC Fire Resistant Antistatic Solid Woven Coal Conveyor 1399 100
Belting, Trading goods, Wind Energy

I1l.  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

SL. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % Of Applicable
No. OF THE COMPANY SUBSIDIARY/ | Shares Held Section
ASSOCIATE
1. | International Belting Limited, U25209WB2006PLC110267 Subsidiary 100 2(87)
10,Middleton Row, Kolkata-700 071
2. | Conveyor Holdings Pte. Limited, 80 NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)

Raffles Place #26-01 UOB Plaza,
Singapore, 048624

3. | International Conveyors America NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Limited, INC 2711 Centreville Road,
Suite No 400, Wilmington, New
Castle 19808

4. | International Conveyors Australia NA Subsidiary 100 2(87)
Pty Limited, : Level 48, 101 Collins
Street, Melbourne VIC 3000

5. | Pure Coke Limited, 10, Middleton U27109WB1974PLC029266 Associate 33.65 2(6)
Row, Kolkata- 700 071*

The entire issued and paid up share capital of Company 4 above is held by Company 2 and that of Companies 1, 2 & 3 above is held by International Conveyors Limited
(ICL).

* More than 20% of shares of Company 5 above is held by Company 1 above and the entire issued and paid up share capital of Company 1 above is held by ICL. The %
of shares held in Company 5 above includes that of Company 1and ICL.
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IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)  Category-wise Share Holding

No of Shares held at the beginning No of Shares held at the end %
of the year [As on 01/Apr/2018] of the year [As on 31/Mar/2019] Change

Category of Shareholders Demat | Physical | Total |%ofTotal| Demat | Physical | Total | % of Total | during

Shares Shares | the year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 4922265 0| 4922265 12922 | 4922265 0| 4922265 1.2922| 0.0000
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt(s)
d) Bodies Corp. 8390054 0| 8390054 12.4297| 11762230 0| 11762230 17.4255 4.9958
e) Banks/Fl
f) Any other
Sub-total (A)(1) 13312319 0| 13312319 19.7219 | 16684495 0| 16684495 241177 4.9958
(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals 15234759 0| 15234759 | 22.5700| 15234759 0| 15234759| 22.5/00| 0.0000
b) Other - Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks/Fl
e) Anyother
Sub-total (A)(2) 15234759 0| 15234759 | 22.5700 | 15234759 0| 15234759 22.5700 0.0000
Total shareholding of Promoter 28547078 0| 28547078 | 42.2919| 31919254 0| 31919254 47.2871 4.9958

(A)=(R)(1+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/Fl

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) Flls 850000

o

850000 1.2593 | 850000 0| 850000 1.2593| 0.0000

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Alternate Investment Funds

Foreign Portfolio Investors 22898397 0| 22898397 33.9236| 12727730 0| 12727730 18.8559 | -15.0677

Provident Funds / Pension Funds

Qualified Foreign Investor

Sub-total(B)(1):- 23748397 0| 23748397 35.1829 | 13577730 0| 13577730 20.1152| -15.0677

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 1940954

o

1940954 2.8755| 9346801 0| 9346801 13.8471| 109716

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders holding nominal 4402764 121020 | 4523784 6.7019| 3612676 119980 | 3732656 5.5299 -1.1720
share capital upto ¥ 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders holding nominal | 8428509
share capital in excess of ¥ 1lakh

o

8428509 12.4867| 8679474 0| 8679474 12.8585 0.3118
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No of Shares held at the beginning No of Shares held at the end %
Category of Sharehalders of the year [As on 01/Apr/2018] of the year [As on 31/Mar/2019] Change
Demat | Physical | Total |%ofTotal| Demat | Physical | Total | % of Total | during
Shares Shares | the year

¢) Others (Specify)

Non Resident Indians 91074 0 91074 0.1349 64125 0 64125 0.0950| -0.0399

Qualified Foreign Investor

Custodian of Enemy Property

Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members 84499 0 84499 0.1252 43325 0 43325 0.0642 | -0.0610

Trusts

Foreign Bodies-D R

Foreign Portfolio Investors

NBFCs registered with RBI 5585 0 5585 0.0083 5585 0 5585 0.0083 0.0000

Employee Trusts

Domestic Corporate Unclaimed Shares

Account

Investor Education and Protection 130120 0 130120 0.1928 131050 0 131050 0.1941 0.0013

Fund Authority
Sub-total(B)(2):- 15083505 121020 | 15204525 22.5253 | 21883036 119980 | 22003016 32.5971 10.0718
Total Public Shareholding (B)=
(B)(1)* (B)(2) 38831902 121020 | 38952922 57.7081| 35460766 119980 | 35580746 52.7123 | -4.9958
C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 67378980 121020 | 67500000 | 100.0000 | 67380020 119980 | 67500000 | 100.0000 | 0.0000

ii) Shareholding of Promoters-

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % Change
No. of Shares | % oftotal | % of Shares No. of % of total | % of Shares m::: ¢
S| Shareholder's Name Shares of | Pledged / Shares Sharesof | Pledged/ | 4 .o tlg1e
No. the Company | encumbered the Company | encumbered :
to total to total year
shares shares
1. | SURBHIT DABRIWALA 8824859 13.0739 0.0000 | 8824859 13.0739 0 0.0000
2. | YAMINI DABRIWALA 6409900 9.4961 0.0000 | 6409900 9.4961 0 0.0000
3. | RAJENDRA KUMAR DABRIWALA 2426620 3.5950 0.0000 | 2426620 3.5950 0 0.0000
4. | DABRI PROPERTIES AND TRADING 2300000 3.4074 0.0000 | 2300000 3.4074 0 0.0000
COMPANY LIMITED
5. | IGE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED 5462534 8.0926 0.0000 8834710 13.0885 0 49959
6. | RITU DALMIA 826286 1.2241 0.0000 826286 1.2241 0 0.0000
7. | SUJATA SARAF 800000 1.1852 0.0000 800000 1.1852 0 0.0000
8. | SMITI SOMANY 790000 1.1704 0.0000 790000 1.1704 0 0.0000
9. |R.C.A. LIMITED 627520 0.9297 0.0000 627520 0.9297 0 0.0000
10. | INDU DABRIWALA 48000 0.071 0.0000 48000 0.071 0 0.0000
11. | PUSHPA BAGLA 31359 0.0465 0.0000 31359 0.0465 0 0.0000
TOTAL 28547078 42.2919 0.0000 | 31919254 47.2878 0.0000 4,9959
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
NSL For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of 9% of total No. of % of total
shares | sharesof the | shares | shares of the
company company
1 | DABRI PROPERTIES AND TRADING COMPANY LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 2300000 3.4074
At the end of the year 2300000 3.4074 | 2300000 3.4074
2 | IGE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 5462534 8.0926
11/05/2018 - Transfer 988341 1.4642 | 6450875 9.5569
18/05/2018 - Transfer 506540 0.7504 | 6957415 10.3073
24/08/2018 - Transfer 1102368 1.6331| 8059783 11.9404
31/08/2018 - Transfer 774927 1.1480 | 8834710 13.0885
At the end of the year 8834710 13.0885 | 8834710 13.0885
3 |R.C.A.LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 627520 0.9297
At the end of the year 627520 0.9297 627520 0.9297
4 | INDU DABRIWALA
At the beginning of the year 48000 0.0
At the end of the year 48000 0.0711 48000 0.0711
5 | PUSHPA BAGLA
At the beginning of the year 31359 0.0465
At the end of the year 31359 0.0465 31359 0.0465
6 | YAMINI DABRIWALA
At the beginning of the year 6409900 9.4961
At the end of the year 6409900 9.4961 | 6409900 9.4961
7 | SURBHIT DABRIWALA
At the beginning of the year 8824859 13.0739
At the end of the year 8824859 13.0739 | 8824859 13.0739
8 | RAJENDRA KUMAR DABRIWALA
At the beginning of the year 2426620 3.595
At the end of the year 2426620 3.595 | 2426620 3.595
9 | RITUDALMIA
At the beginning of the year 826286 1.2241
At the end of the year 826286 1.2241 826286 1.2241
10 | SUJATA SARAF
At the beginning of the year 800000 1.1852
At the end of the year 800000 11852 | 800000 1.1852
11 | SMITI SOMANY
At the beginning of the year 790000 1.1704
At the end of the year 790000 1.1704 | 790000 1.1704
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iv)]  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
NS;_ For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | sharesof the | shares | shares of the
company company
1 | DEUTSCHE BANK A.G. #
At the beginning of the year 1000000 1.4815
As on 06/04/2018 - Transfer (1000000) 1.4815 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
2 | LKP FINANCE LIMITED *
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000
As on 15/02/2019 - Transfer 435717 0.6455 435717 0.6455
As on 22/02/2019 - Transfer 202000 0.2993 637717 0.9448
As on 01/03/2019 - Transfer 1236163 1.8314| 1873880 2.7761
As on 08/03/2019 - Transfer 151000 0.2237| 2024880 2.9998
As on 15/03/2019 - Transfer 998583 1.4794 | 3023463 4.4792
As on 29/03/2019 - Transfer 321328 0.4760 | 3344791 4.9552
At the end of the year 3344791 49552 | 3344791 4,9552
3 | LOTUS GLOBAL INVESTMENTS LTD
At the beginning of the year 4299400 6.3695
As on 11/05/2018 - Transfer (1000000) 1.4815| 3299400 4.8880
As on 18/05/2018 - Transfer (500000) 0.7407| 2799400 41473
At the end of the year 2799400 41473 | 2799400 41473
4 | ELARA INDIA OPPORTUNITIES FUND LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 5015997 7.4311
As on 15/02/2019 - Transfer (587153) 0.8699 | 4428844 6.5613
As on 22/02/2019 - Transfer (598512) 0.8867| 3830332 5.6746
As on 01/03/2019 - Transfer (591370) 0.8761| 3238962 4.7985
At the end of the year 3238962 47985 | 3238962 4.7985
5 | INDIA MAX INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED #
At the beginning of the year 2403000 3.5600
As on 10/08/2018 - Transfer (301139) 0.4461| 2101861 3.1139
As on 17/08/2018 - Transfer (225000) 0.3333| 1876861 2.7805
As on 24/08/2018 - Transfer (1500000) 2.2222 376861 0.5583
As on 31/08/2018 - Transfer (376861) 0.5583 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
6 | ERISKA INVESTMENT FUND LTD
At the beginning of the year 6180000 9.1556
As on 01/03/2019 - Transfer (1487175) 0.2204 | 6031225 8.9351
As on 08/03/2019 - Transfer (696646) 1.0321| 5334579 7.9031
As on 15/03/2019 - Transfer (1323550) 1.9608 | 4011029 5.9423
As on 22/03/2019 - Transfer (1801661) 2.6691| 2209368 3.2731
As on 29/03/2019 - Transfer (520000) 0.7704 | 1689368 2.5028
At the end of the year 1689368 2.5028 | 1689368 2.5028
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Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
Nscl'_ For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | shares of the | shares | shares of the
company company
7 | TEAM INDIA MANAGERS LTD *
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000
As on 22/03/2019 - Transfer 779383 1.1546 779383 1.1546
As on 29/03/2019 - Transfer 651000 0.9644 | 1430383 2.1191
At the end of the year 1430383 2.1191| 1430383 2.1191
8 | CRESTA FUND LTD
At the beginning of the year 5500000 8.1481
As on 06/04/2018 - Transfer (500000) 0.7407 | 5000000 7.4074
At the end of the year 5000000 7.4074 | 5000000 7.4074
9 | VIKASA INDIA EIF | FUND
At the beginning of the year 850000 1.2593
At the end of the year 850000 1.2593 850000 1.2593
10 | SANTOSH KR KEJRIWAL SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 851150 1.2610
At the end of the year 851150 1.2610 851150 1.2610
11 | MADHURI KELA
At the beginning of the year 1615000 2.3926
At the end of the year 1615000 2.3926 | 1615000 2.3926
12 | KHUSHALI J VANZARA
At the beginning of the year 635000 0.9407
At the end of the year 635000 0.9407 635000 0.9407
13 | DEEPSHIKHA KHAITAN
At the beginning of the year 750000 1.1
At the end of the year 750000 1.1111 750000 1.11M
14 | MADHUSUDAN KELA
At the beginning of the year 1710000 2.5333
At the end of the year 1710000 2.5333 | 1710000 2.5333

* Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2018. The same has been reflected above since the shareholder was one of the
Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2019.

# Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31/03/2019. The same is reflected abave since the shareholder was one of the
Top 10 shareholders as on 01/04/2018.

18 Annual Report 2018-19




Directors’ Report

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

[ ]
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Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
NS ':_ For Each of the Directors and KMP No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares | sharesof the | shares | shares of the
company company
1 | RAJENDRA KUMAR DABRIWALA
At the beginning of the year 2426620 3.5950
At the end of the year 2426620 3.5950| 2426620 3.5950
2 | JINESH SURYAKANT VANZARA
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 ] 0.0000
3 | SUNIT OM PRAKASH MEHRA
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
4 | LAKSHMIKANT TIBRAWALLA
At the beginning of the year 2930 0.0043
At the end of the year 2930 0.0043 2930 0.0043
5 | MAHADEO PRASAD JHUNJHUNWALA
At the beginning of the year 200 0.0003
At the end of the year 200 0.0003 200 0.0003
6 |KUNCHALA THIRUPAL REDDY
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
7 | NANDINI KHAITAN
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 ] 0.0000
8 |COLIN WILLIAM BENJAMIN
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
9 | ASHOK KUMAR GULGULIA
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
10 | NEHA KHANDELWAL
At the beginning of the year 0 0.0000 0 0.0000
At the end of the year 0 0.0000 1] 0.0000
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V.

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total
Particulars excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) |Principal Amount 178534062 471932957 0 650467019
ii) |Interest due but not paid 350007 407671 0 757678
i) |Interest accrued but not due 99548 0 0 99548
Total (i+iitiii) 178983617 | 472340628 ] 651324245
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
* Addition 0| 379827550 0 379827550
* Reduction (15766482) 0 0 (15766482)
Net Change (15766482) | 379827550 ] 364061068
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) |Principal Amount 163217135 852168178 0| 1015385313
ii) |Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) | Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0
Total (i+iitiii) 163217135 852168178 0| 1015385313
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
Sl . . Name of MD Total Amount
No. Particulars of Remuneration Shri Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 60,00,000.00| 60,00,000.00
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 35,00,000.00( 35,00,000.00
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income- tax NIL NIL
Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option NIL NIL
3. |Sweat Equity NIL NIL
4. | Commission NIL NIL
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify NIL NIL
Total (A) 95,00,000.00| 95,00,000.00
Ceiling as per the Act 1,68,00,000.00| 1,68,00,000.00
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
SI. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No.
1. | Independent Directors
* Fee for attending Board /Committee Meetings Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala 1,40,000.00
Shri L.K. Tibrawalla 1,40,000.00
Shri J.S. Vanzara 1,10,000.00
Shri K. T. Reddy 30,000.00
Shri C. W. Benjamin -
* Commission NIL
* Others, please specify NIL
Total (1) 4,20,000.00
2. | Other Non-Executive Directors
* Fee for attending Board /Committee Meetings Ms. N. Khaitan 90,000.00
Shri S. Mehra 30,000.00
* Commission NIL
* Others, please specify NIL
Total (2) 1,20,000.00
Total (B)=(1+2) 5,40,000.00
Total Managerial Remuneration 5,40,000.00
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Rs. 1 Lakh per Board or Committee Meeting
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
|\S|(I,'_ Particulars of Remuneration g::z:;z A;‘FS( (Iz:ll:ar Total
(Ms. Neha Gulgulia)
Khandelwal)
1. | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income-tax 1,80,600 9,24,000 11,04,600
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 1,08,240 6,75,200 7,83,440
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income-tax NIL NIL NIL
Act, 1961
2. | Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
3. | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. | Commission NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total 2,88,840 15,99,200 18,88,040
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :
Section Brief Details of Authority | Appeal
of the Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/ | made,if
Type Companies Punishment/ Court) any (give
Act Compounding Details)
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL

Compounding
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Management Discussion and
Analysis Report

OVERVIEW

International Conveyors Limited is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of solid woven fabric reinforced PVC impregnated and
PVC covered fire retardant, anti static conveyor belting in India since 1978 having a rich and valuable experience of around 40 years.

The Company is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office in Falta SEZ, West Bengal.
The Company has its primary listings on BSE and CSE Limited in India.

The management's perspective on the financial condition and on the operating performance of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2019 is illustrated through the following report. The discussions related to the Company’s financial condition and
result of operations should be read in conjunction with the Company's financial statements, schedules and notes thereto and the
other information included elsewhere in the Annual Report. The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and guidelines issued by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Despite the slowdown, your Company is seeing bright future for its business and will strive for
better performance in coming years.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

International Conveyors Limited (ICL) is one of the leading market players specializing in production of PVC Fire Resistant Antistatic
Solid Woven Coal Conveyor Belt with an annual production of 3,42,210 meters in 2018-19. ICL is one of the leading exporters of
PVC Conveyor Belts in India. It serves as a chain right from the stage of conveying semi-finished goods till final rolling out of
finished goods. ICL is also into wind power generation with a capacity of 4.65 MW, with locations spread across Gujarat, Maharashtra,
Karnataka and Telangana. Your Company is also associated with Mato Industries Ltd.,UK as distributors in India for Mato Belt Lacing
Machine, Fasteners, Spindle Pins and Belt Cutter etc., for the last 3 decades. ICL has achieved substantial growth rate of sale of Mato
Products in India. The Company expects substantial growth of the ongoing business in the coming years.

Your Company has the ability to make Conveyor belting up to 2500 kN/m tensile strength and belt widths up to 1800 mm (72").
This is the widest product range of Solid Woven belting available from any one Company with a manufacturing capacity in excess of 1
million meters per annum of all the product mix of PVC Solid Woven Conveyor Belting.

A Conveyor Belt System is one of the most used and preferred equipment all over the world and can be used in wide range of
applications. It is an equipment which is used to handle and transport materials and is used in several industries including mining,
cement, power etc. The use of conveyors system ensures handling larger volume of material with efficiency.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The increasing applications of conveyor belts in various industries are helping the global conveyor belt market to expand. A
considerably wide geographic presence and reach, both domestic and international, have helped the Company to attempt derisking
its business and meet the risks and threats with suitable precaution. Additionally, these belts enable the manufacturers to reduce
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inventory levels, and in turn, reduce overall production costs. Moreover, conveyor belts also aid in improving the order-to-delivery
cycle. As a result, the escalating demand for conveyor belts from automation, mining and manufacturing industries has emerged as
another major demand driver.

The growing demand from power, mining, and manufacturing industries is considered to be one of the major growth drivers in this
market. Due to heavy competition, these industries rely heavily on efficient techniques to maintain production costs as low as possible.
Since the need for swift production and delivery techniques from these industries is likely to increase, this market study estimates
that the demand for conveyor belts will only keep escalating during the forecast period.

The Conveyor industry is surrounded by certain threat which needs to be overcome. Some of the threats that the conveyor industry
encounter are inconsistencies in legislations governing the sector, fluctuation in rupee value, volatility in the price of key raw material,
depletion of natural resources arising out of the use of coal, transportation hindrances along with high carrying cost of coal and lack
of availability of highly skilled manpower.

The macro industry in which we operate has high demand and growth potential. We treat every threat as opportunity which helps us
to evolve suitably for future.

SEGMENT-WISE AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The segment-wise and product-wise performances of the Company are given in the notes to accounts for the year ended March 31,
2019.

OUTLOOK

The global conveyor belt market has been witnessing a sustained growth over the past few years, owing to the extensive use of
conveyor belts in automation, mining, cement, power and manufacturing industries. The market is highly fragmented and fiercely
competitive in nature.

The global conveyor belt market is relatively linked to several factors like industrialization, GDP growth, economic activity and growth
in infrastructural developments. The conveyor market all across the globe has grown at a moderate pace over the past few year and is
anticipated to expand at significant rate in near future.

The long-term outlook for the industry is optimistic based upon the product innovation and cutting edge technology for sustaining
growth. With a diverse portfolio of varied types of conveyor belts the company remains optimistic for coming years.

Your Company is also in the process of inclusion of other Mato products like Belt Scrappers, Cleaners and low tensile belt fasteners
(for Industrial Belts).

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Risks are evaluated based on the probability and impact of each risk. Risk owners prepare their risk plans which include responsibilities
and timeliness. These are periodically updated for the actions taken. In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to
certain financial risks, principally payment risk, competitor risk, foreign exchange risk, risk associated with compliance, environment
risk, industry risk, industrial relation risk, reputation risk etc. These risks are managed through risk management policies that are
designed to minimize the potential adverse effects of these risks on financial performance. The policies are reviewed and approved by
the Board. Some of the other risks encountered by the management are as follows:

»  Non availahility and change in prices of raw materials as well as energy due to market fluctuation and imposition of government
duties.

+  Fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, operating costs and commodity prices may affect the results of operations and also
affect the finance cost and profitability.

+ The importation of coal may demotivate the producers of coal to produce more coal thereby restricting the demand for PVC
conveyor belting.

*  Non availability of required talent resources can affect the performance of the Company.
»  The Company is also exposed to the defaults by customers in payments.

»  The Company is exposed to the risk of Environment and Pollution Controls, which is required to be controlled.
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» Theincrease in competition can create pressure on margins, market share etc.

»  Stringent corporate governance regulations and public disclosure requirements have enhanced the need for compliances.
Comepliance risk is caused by failure in compliance with various domestic and overseas rules and regulations. Non-compliance
may lead to penalties and loss of reputation.

*  Reputational risk may arise due to negligence of the abovementioned concerns.

However, Company has various due diligence systems in place to mitigate the impact of the risks mentioned above and to ensure
transparency and accountability in the day to day business activities.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has in place an established Internal Control System including internal financial Controls designed to ensure proper
recording of financial and operational information, compliance of various internal controls and other regulatory and statutory
compliances. Regular monitoring is also conducted by the Audit Committee certifying effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Company. Internal Audit is conducted throughout the organization by qualified Internal Auditors. Findings of the Internal Audit
Report are reviewed by the Board of Directors and by the Audit Committee and proper follow up action are ensured wherever required.
The Statutory Auditors have evaluated the system of internal controls including internal financial control of the Company and have
reported that the same are adequate and commensurate with the size of the company and nature of its business.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

Environment, Health and Safety (EHS) is one of the primary focus areas for the Company. The Company focuses on achieving excellence
in occupational and personal health of employees at all manufacturing sites as well as at its offices. Our goals are: no accidents, no
harm to people and no damage to environment. The Company is committed to provide a safe workplace to its employees and safety
to the community where it operates. Your Company believes that continuous learning and upgrading of systems and processes are
indispensable as we move ahead with our visions of achieving best-in-industry status with respect to safety system and culture.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The disclosures under financial performance with respect to operational performance are appearing in the Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED

Your Company lays great emphasis on building a motivated work force, which can participate constructively in the growth of the
Company. Innovative ideas are regularly received from the officers and staff of the Company, many of which were implemented for
improvement in areas of quality, cost savings and increased productivity. The strategic thrust of HR has resulted in improvement in
the performance of employees by providing them training and development and also to identify employees who are performing well
and have potential to take higher responsibilities. The devotion and commitment of our employees has enabled the Company to fulfill
its targets and deadlines in time.

The Company considers its human resource as the most valuable ingredient of the functioning of the company and utmost endeavor
is made to maintain good relations with the employees at all levels.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s focal objectives, expectations or anticipations may
be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from the
expectations. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand and supply
conditions affecting selling prices of products, inputs availability and prices, changes in Government regulations/tax laws, economic
developments within the country and factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala M.PJhunjhunwala
Place : Kolkata Managing Director Director
Date : May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658 DIN No. 00567070
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is a set of systems and practices to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being managed in a way
which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all its transactions. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical behavior and fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators,
employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society at large.

A Report on Compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with para C,D and E of Schedule V and
clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) is given below:

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
(i) Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors
who have an in-depth knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise in their areas of specialization. The Board comprises
of 8 (Eight) Directors that includes one Woman Director. All the Directors of the Company, except the Managing Director are
Non-Executive Directors. The number of Non-Executive Independent Directors is more than half the total strength of the Board.
The Company did not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Non-Executive Directors during the period under
review.

The Board composition is in accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(i) (a) Meetings, agenda and attendance of the Board Meetings

The Board of Directors of the Company met four times during the year 2018-19 held on May 30, 2018, August 10,
2018,November 14, 2018 and February 1, 2019. The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings was not
more than ninety days.

All the agenda items are backed by necessary supporting information and documents to enable the Board to take informed
decisions. The Chairman along with the Managing Director and/or the Chief Financial Officer, Executive Presidents of the
Company makes presentation on the quarterly and annual operating & financial performance and on annual operating
and capex budget of the Company.
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The composition and category of the Board of Directors, their relationship with other Directors, their attendance at the Board
Meetings held during the year 2018-19 as well as at the last Annual General Meeting, number of Directorships and Committee
Memberships/Chairmanships in other Companies as on March 31, 2019 are as follows :

| Name of Directors Category No. of Board | Attendance | No. of Other No. of committee
No Meetings at last AGM | Directorship in | positions held in other
attended Public Limited Companies**
during the Companies
year as on March Member | Chairman
31, 2019
(Including
International
Conveyors
Limited)*
.| Shri R. K. Dabriwala Executive Director 4 Yes 3 - -
2. | Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala Non-Executive 4 Yes 1 - -
Independent Director
3. | Shri L. K. Tibrawalla Non-Executive 4 Yes 6 1 1
Independent Director
.| Ms N. Khaitan Non-Executive Director 3 No 6 1 -
5. [Shri J. S. Vanzara Non-Executive 3 Yes 1 - -
Independent Director
6. | Shri K. T. Reddy Non-Executive 1 No 1 - -
Independent Director
Shri S. Mehra Non-Executive Director 1 No 1 - -
Shri C. W. Benjamin Non-Executive 1 No 1 - -
Independent Director

*Excludes Private Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.
**Only Membership/chairmanship of Audit Committee, Stakeholder's Relationship Committee of other public limited companies has
been considered.

(b) Other company directorships listed/incorporated in India:

Directors
Ms. N. Khaitan

Listed Indian Companies Category of Directorship

Xpro India Limited
Williamson Financial Services Limited
Dhunseri Tea & Industries Ltd.

Shree Hanuman Sugar & Industries Ltd

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Shri L. K. Tibrawalla

(c) SKILLS / EXPERTISE / COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of directors of the Company consists of eminent qualified professional members from diverse fields, who have
significant talent of skills / expertise /competencies such as understanding the Company’s business policies, knowledge of
the industry in which the Company operates, experience in planning, policymaking, risk management and financial affairs,
strategic planning & decision making, leadership, integrity and maintaining of confidentiality, managing relationships
with the Board, Management Team, Regulators, Bankers, Industry representatives and other Stakeholders and thus make
valuable contributions to the Company.
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The Board is satisfied that its current composition reflects an abundance of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and
independence required for it to function effectively.

(iii) Video Conferencing

The Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made there under, facilitates the participation of a Director in Board/
Committee Meetings through video conferencing or other audio visual mode. Accordingly, the option to participate in the
Meeting through video conferencing was made available for the Directors except in respect of such Meetings/Items which are
not permitted to be transacted through video conferencing. During the year 2018-19, one of the directors participated in the
Board Meeting through video conferencing.

(iv) Information Placed before Board of Directors

The Company has complied with Part A of Schedule 11 of the Listing Regulations read with Regulation 17(7) of the said regulations
with regard to information being placed before the Board of Directors

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Company has complied with the definition of Independent Director as per The Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. The
Company has also obtained declarations from all the Independent Directors as required under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act,
2013.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for performance evaluation of all Directors including Independent
Director. The performance evaluation has been done by the entire Board of Directors, except the Director concerned being evaluated.
The said criteria for performance evaluation provide certain parameters like attendance at meetings, heading Board Sub-committees,
interpersonal skills etc.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Meeting of Independent Directors was held on February 01, 2019. Shri M.P Jhunjhunwala, Chairman of the Meeting, in the presence of
all other Independent directors, presented their views on matters relating to Board processes and the overall affairs of the Company.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the terms of Regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations whereby the Company is required to conduct
familiarization programs for Independent Directors to familiarize them with their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature
of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc.

Independent Directors are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to enable them to familiarize with the
Company’s procedures and practices.

The details of familiarization programme have been posted in the website of the Company under the link - https://www.iclbelting.
com/resources/reports/gnrl/Familarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Director.pdf

(B) COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s Committees include Audit Committee, Stakeholder Relationship Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

(i) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations, read with
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing with the management the financial statements and adequacy of internal audit
function and to discuss significant internal audit findings.
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Composition and Meetings

The Committee comprises of

Name of Member Category Number of meetings during the
financial year 2018-2019
Held Attended
*Shri J. S. Vanzara Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4
Shri L. K. Tibrawalla Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4
Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala Non-Executive Independent Director 4 4

*Shri J.S. Vanzara is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee invites such ofthe executives, asit considersappropriate (particularly head of the finance function), representatives
of the statutory auditors and representative of the internal auditors to be present at its meetings. Ms. Neha Khandelwal, Company
Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee. During the year under review, the Committee met on 26.05.2018,
10.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 01.02.2019 and the gap between two meetings did not exceed four months. Each member had attended
all Committee Meetings held at the above mentioned dates.

Terms of reference of the Committee included powers and role to review information as specified in Part C of Schedule Il of Listing
Regulations of the Company.

Role of Audit Committee
The role of the Audit Committee pursuant to Schedule Il Part C of Listing Regulations is as follows:
1. Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and financial information disclosure;

2. Review with the management, the annual and quarterly financial statements before submission to the board; matters to be
included into the Directors Responsibility Statement;

3. Monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit processes;

4. Review with the Management, the Internal and External Audit Reports and adequacy of the internal control systems and risk
management system.

5. Review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism;

6.  Recommending the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the
fixation of audit fees and confirm their independence.

7. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
(i) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee is mainly entrusted with the responsibility of formulating criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes
and independence of the present and proposed Directors as well as recommending a policy to the Board relating to the remuneration
of Directors, KMP and other employees.

Composition and Meetings

As per the requirement of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulation, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprises of 3 Directors, all of them are Non-executive Directors as well as Independent Director.
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The Committee comprises of:

Name of Member Category Number of meetings during the

financial year 2018-2019

Held

Attended

*Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala

Non-Executive Independent Director

1

1

Shri L. K. Tibrawalla

Non-Executive Independent Director

1

1

Shri J. S. Vanzara

Non-Executive Independent Director

1

*Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala is the Chairman of the Committee.

During the year under review the Committee met on 30.05.2019.

Terms of Reference of the Committee

The terms and reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee inter-alia includes the following:

1. Toidentify persons who are qualified to become Director and who may be appointed in Senior Management Personnel.

2. Tocarry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

3. Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and for evaluation of

Independent Directors and the Board.

4. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time.

Details of Directors’ Remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amount in %)

SI. Salary Perquisites and | Sitting Fees Total

No. Name Allowances

i) |Executive Director:
Shri R. K. Dabriwala Managing Director 60,00,000 35,00,000 - 95,00,000

ii) |Non-Executive Directors:
Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala 1,40,000 1,40,000
Shri L. K. Tibrawalla 1,40,000 1,40,000
Shri J. S. Vanzara 1,10,000 1,10,000
Shri K. T. Reddy 30,000 30,000
Shri S. Mehra 30,000 30,000
Ms N. Khaitan 90,000 90,000
Shri C. W. Benjamin - -

(iii)

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholder's Relationship Committee has the mandate to review and redress shareholder’s complaints.
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Name of Member

Category

Number of meetings during the
financial year 2018-2019

Held

Attended

Shri R. K. Dabriwala

Managing Director

1

1

*Shri L. K. Tibrawalla

Non-Executive Independent Director

1

1

Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala

Non-Executive Independent Director

1

1

*Shri L. K. Tibrawalla is the Chairman of the Committee.

Ms. Neha Khandelwal, Company Secretary of the Company acted as the Secretary to the Committee. During the year under review, the

Committee met on 30.05.2019.

During the year, no investor complaints pending unresolved at the end of the financial year 2018-19.
(iv) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee framed a mechanism for implementation of CSR projects or programs or

activities undertaken by the Company and also monitor CSR policy from time to time.

Composition and Meetings
The Committee comprises of :

Name of Member Category Number of meetings during the
financial year 2018-2019
Held Attended
*Shri R. K. Dabriwala Managing Director 1 1
Shri M. P. Jhunjhunwala Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1
Shri L. K. Tibrawalla Non-Executive Independent Director 1 1
*Shri R. K. Dabriwala is the Chairman of the Committee.
During the year under review, the Committee met on 30.05.2019
(C) GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
(i) The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:
Date Time Location No. of Special
Financial year Resolution(s)
Passed
2017-2018 September 22, 2.00 PM Falta SEZ, Sector-11, Near Pump House No. 3, Village 1
2018 and Mouza-Akalmegh, Dist. 24 Parganas (S), West
Bengal-743504
2016-2017 September 23, 2.00PM Falta SEZ, Sector-1I, Near Pump House No. 3, Village 3
2017 and Mouza-Akalmegh, Dist. 24 Parganas (S), West
Bengal-743504
2015-2016 September 24, 2.00PM Falta SEZ, Sector-11, Near Pump House No. 3, Village 1
2016 and Mouza-Akalmegh, Dist. 24 Parganas (S), West
Bengal-743504
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(i) Details of Special Resolution Passed in the previous three AGMs:
Date of AGM Date of AGM Details of the Special Resolutions passed
September 22, 2018 Re-appointment of Shri R. K. Dabriwala (DIN : 00086658) as Managing Director
September 23, 2017 Re-appointment of Shri R. K. Dabriwala (DIN : 00086658) as Managing Director

Giving Loans/Guarantees or providing securities for and on behalf of Subsidiary Companies
(including overseas subsidiaries) and/or making investments in such Subsidiary Companies
(including overseas subsidiaries)

Authorisation to borrow monies for Company’s Business

September 24, 2016 Re-appointment of Shri R. K. Dabriwala (DIN : 00086658) as Managing Director
(iii) No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year 2018-19.
(iv) Postal Ballot

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, no resolution was passed through Postal Ballot.

(D) DISCLOSURES

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

Disclosures on materially significant Related Party Transactions

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the Company’s interest. The Details of
related party transactions are given in the Notes to Accounts (Note) of the Annual Report which have been reviewed /
approved by the Audit Committee.

The policy on Related Party Transaction is available on the website of the Company at https://www.iclbelting.com/
resources/reports/gnrl/Related%20Party%20Policy.pdf.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or
SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last years

The Company has, complied with all requirements of the Listing Regulations, entered with BSE and CSE, as well as
regulations and guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, no penalties or strictures are imposed by SEBI or the Stock Exchanges
or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the Capital markets.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards as
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and notified by the Central Government under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as recommended by Listing Regulations with stock
exchanges and is in the process of examining the implementation of some of the non-mandatory requirements.

Certificate from Practising Company Secretary

A certificate confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority, has been received from Mr. Rajesh Kumar Shaw of M/s. Rajesh
Kumar Shaw & Co, Company Secretaries.

Prevention of Insider Trading

In accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time, the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted the revised ‘Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report
Trading by Designated Persons’ with a view to regulate trading in securities of the Company by insiders.
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The Code prohibits the insiders from dealing in the securities of the Company on the basis of any unpublished price
sensitive information available to them by virtue of their position in the Company. The Code also provides for periodical
disclosures from designated persons as well as pre-clearance of transactions (above threshold) by such persons so that
they may not use their position or knowledge of the Company to gain personal benefit or to provide benefit to any third

party.
The Company has also adopted ‘Code of Practice and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information’ in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Board of Directors and

the designated persons have confirmed compliance with the said Code. The Code is also placed on the Company's website
and can be accessed through link:

https://iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/SEBI%20PIT%20REGULATIONS _final _WEBSITE.pdf.

(vii) Recommendations made by the Committees of the Board

During the financial year 2018-19, there have been no circumstances where the Board of Directors of the Company have
not accepted any recommendation made by any of the committees of the Board.

(viii)Management Discussion and Analysis Report

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligation &
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section forming part of this report.

Code of Conduct

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of the Listing Regulations, there exists a Code of Conduct, laid down by the Board, for all
the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with this Code in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the Listing Regulations. A declaration
to this effect for the financial year 2018-2019 from the Managing Director of the Company is annexed to this Report.

The full text of the Code has been disclosed on the Company's website under the link -
https://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Code%200f%20Conduct%20for%20Directors.pdf.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting
illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a Vigil policy and it provides adequate safeguards against victimization of
Director(s)/ employee(s) and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

The Vigil Mechanism policy has been disclosed on the Company's website under the link
http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Vigil%20Mechanism.pdf and circulated to all the Directors/ employees.
Status of Non-Mandatory Requirements

Non-mandatory requirements on Corporate Governance as prescribed in Part E of Schedule Il to the Regulation 27 (1) of
the Listing Regulation will be implemented by the Company when required and/or deemed necessary by the Board.

(xii) MD/CFO Certification

The MD and CFO of the Company has given a certificate to the Board of Directors as per Part B of Schedule Il to the
Regulation 17 (8) of the Listing Regulation for the year ended March 31, 2019.

(xiii) Compliance Certificate of the Auditors

Certificate from the Company's Statutory Auditors M/s. G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming compliance
with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is attached and forms part of the
Directors’ Report.
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(xiv) Payment made to Statutory Auditors

The total fees for all the services paid by the Company to the statutory auditors for the financial year ended March 31,
2019 is disclosed in Note No. 35 of the Financial Statements.

(xv) Subsidiary companies

The Company has 3 (Three) wholly owned subsidiaries and 1(One) step-down Subsidiary. The Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and the investments made by it in its unlisted subsidiary companies are reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The Company has a policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ which is disclosed on its website at the following link-
http://www.iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Material%20Subsidiaries.pdf
(xvi) Means of Communication

The Financial Results of the Company quarterly/yearly are communicated to the Stock Exchanges where shares of the
Company are listed and published in leading newspaper like Business Standard and Duranta Barta (Regional).The
Company's results and official news releases were displayed on the Company’s website www.iclbelting.com

(E) GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION :

(i)

Annual General Meeting

46th Annual General Meeting

Date Saturday, September 21, 2019
Time 2:00 PM
Venue Falta SEZ, Sector-1I, Near Pump House No. 3, Village and Mouza -

Akalmegh, Dist. 24 Parganas (s), West Bengal-743504

(ii)

Financial Calendar

April to March

(iii)

For Adoption of Quarterly Results

Expected Date

-Quarter ending June 30, 2019

2nd Week of August, 2019

-Quarter ending September 30, 2019

2nd Week of November, 2019

-Quarter ending December 31, 2019

2nd Week of February, 2019

-Year and quarter ending March 31, 2020

Last Week of May, 2020

(iv)

Book Closure

September 14, 2019 to September 21, 2019 (both days inclusive)

(v)

Expected Dividend payment date

Within 30 days from the date of Declaration of Dividend

(vi)

Listing on Stock Exchange

The Company's shares are listed at:-

(i) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata — 700 001

(ii) BSE Ltd.
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400 001

Listing fees for the year 2019 -2020 have been paid to all the aforesaid
Stock Exchanges.

(vii)

Stock Codes

10019039 (CSE) 509709 (BSE)
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(viii) Stock Market Price Data for the year 2018-2019

Month BSE SENSEX (BSE)
High () Low () Volume (BSE) High Low
April 2018 29.40 24.25 89,715 35213.30 32972.56
May 2018 40.65 21.15 19,35,680 35993.53 34302.89
June 2018 28.00 22.75 18,474 35871.41 34784.68
July 2018 26.80 19.25 48,425 37644.59 35106.57
August 2018 29.85 22.50 25,61,521 38989.65 37128.99
September 2018 32.85 25.10 82,805 38934.35 35985.63
October 2018 28.10 22.65 10,36,526 36616.64 33291.58
November 2018 26.00 22.10 1,19,593 36389.22 34303.38
December 2018 24.95 20.05 1,14,872 36554.99 34426.29
January 2019 24.6 19.55 4,09,909 36701.03 35375.51
February 2019 31.95 21.00 2142414 37172.18 352817.16
March 2019 31.85 25.70 45,90,022 38748.54 35926.94

(ix) Registrar & Share Transfer Agents and Shareholders’ Correspondence :

The Company has engaged Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. (MDPL), 23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata—700 001,
Phone: (033) 2248 2248, (033) 2243 5029, Fax: (033) 2248 2248, Email: mdplc@yahoo.com; a SEBI registered Share Transfer
Agent for processing transfer, sub-division, consolidation, splitting of securities, etc.

For transfer/dematerialization of shares and any other query relating to the shares of the Company kindly contact Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent.

(x)  Unclaimed Dividend/ Shares :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, the
Company is required to transfer the amount of dividend remained unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF).

Accordingly detailed information in respect of the relevant financial years is provided for the benefit of the Company’s Investors.

Financial Year Type Date of Dividend Paid Unclaimed Dividend as on Due date for
Declaration 31.03.2019 transfer to IEPF
3 %
2011-2012 Final 25.07.2012 1,68,75,000 103178.25 0.612 23.08.2019
2012-2013 Final 04.09.2013 1,68,75,000 112791.25 0.668 03.10.2020
2013-2014 Final 26.09.2014 1,68,75,000 53516.75 0.317 25.10.2021
2014-2015 Final 26.09.2015 1,68,75,000 56515.00 0.335 25.10.2022
2015-2016 Final 24.09.2016 33,75,000 14111.40 0.418 23.10.2023
2016-2017 Final 23.09.2017 33,75,000 14434.95 0.428 22.10.2024
2017-2018 Final 22.09.2018 33,75,000 6944.35 0.206 21.10.2025

(xi) Transfer of ‘Underlying Shares’ into Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) (in cases where unclaimed dividends
have been transferred to IEPF for a consecutive period of seven years) :

In terms of Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Amendment Rules, 2017, read with all the relevant notifications as issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time, the Company has transferred 131050 equity shares in respect of 25 shareholders
to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid or unclaimed for seven consecutive
years or more as on the stipulated due date.
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A list of shareholders alongwith their folio number or DP ID/ Client ID., who have not claimed their dividends for the last
seven years and whose shares are therefore liable for transfer to IEPF Demat Account, has been displayed on the website of
the Company at https://iclbelting.com/resources/reports/gnrl/Shares%20due%20for%20transfer%20to%201EPF.pdf besides
sending individual communication to the concerned shareholders and issuance of public notice.

Further, it may also be noted that in terms of Section 124(6) and 125(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the IEPF
Rules, shares and dividends which have been transferred to the IEPF Authority may be claimed by making an online application
in Form No. IEPF-5, which is available at www.iepf.gov.in

(xii) Share Transfer System
Share transfers are processed and share certificates duly endorsed are dispatched within a period of 15 days from the date
of lodgment if the documents are complete in all respects. As per directives issued by the SEBI, it is compulsory to trade in
the Company’s equity shares in dematerialized form. The Company offers the facility of transfer cum dematerialization to its
shareholders.
(xiii) Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2019
No. of Shares No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of holding to total Shares
1-500 1151 194652 0.2884
501-1000 235 206808 0.3064
1001-2000 141 230929 0.3421
2001-3000 53 135351 0.2005
3001-4000 39 141382 0.2095
4001-5000 35 167787 0.2486
5001-10000 57 411286 0.6093
10001 and above 123 66011805 97.7953
Total 1834 67500000 100.00
(xiv) Pattern of Shareholding as on March 31, 2019
SI. Catego Total No. of Shares Percentage of
No. gory Shareholdings
1. | Promoter Group
Individuals / HUF (Indian) 4922265 7.2922
Individuals (NRI/ Foreign Individuals) 15234759 22.5700
Bodies Corporate (Indian) 11762230 17.4255
Total shareholding of promoter and promoter group 31919254 47.28771
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SI. Category Total No. of Shares Percentag.e of

No. Shareholdings

2. | Non-Promoter Group
Foreign Institutional Investors/ Foreign Portfolio Investors 13577730 20.1152
NBFCs registered with RBI 5585 0.0083
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 131050 0.1941
Bodies Corporate 9346801 13.8471
Non-Resident Individuals 64125 0.0950
Clearing Member 43325 0.0642
Individuals 12412130 18.3884
Total Public Shareholding 35580746 52.71123

(xv) Dematerialization of Shares

99.822% of the Company's total shares representing 67380020 shares were held in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2019
and the balance 0.178% representing 119980 shares were in physical form.

(xvi) Demat ISIN Number in NSDL and CDSL
INES75C01027
(xvii) Number of Employees

Location wise break-up of the number of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2019:

Location No. of employees
1) | Corporate Office 13
2) | Aurangabad Works 64
3) |Falta Works and Registered Office 01
Total 78

(xviii) Factory Locations

(@) M.L.D.C. Area, Chikalthana, Aurangabad — 431 006, Maharashtra (India).

(b) Falta SEZ, Sector-1l, Near Pump House No. 3, Village and Mouza - Akalmegh, Dist.: 24 Parganas (S), West Bengal-743504.
(xix) Reconciliation of Share Capital and Audit Report

A Charted Accountant in full time practice carried out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted share capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued
and listed capital on quarterly basis. The report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares
are listed. The report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges, and is also placed before the Board of Directors. The audit
confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with total number of shares in physical forms and total number
of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.
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(xx)

(xxi)

Service of documents through electronic mode

As a part of Green Initiative, the members who wish to receive the notice/documents through e-mail, may kindly intimate
their e-mail address to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd., 23, R.N.
Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata—700 001.

Outstanding GDR/ADR Warrants or Convertible Bonds
The Company has not issued any of the securities as mentioned above.
For any query on Annual Report etc. please contact:

International Conveyors Limited

10, Middleton Row,

Kolkata - 700 071

Telephone: 033- 2229 6033

Fax: 033-2217 2269

Designated e-mail 1D for Investor Services: investors@iclbelting.com
Website: www.iclbelting.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala M.P.Jhunjhunwala

Place : Kolkata Managing Director Director

Date

: May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658 DIN No. 00567070

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
International Conveyors Limited, having its Registered Office at Falta SEZ, Sector-1I, Near Pump House No. 3, Village
and Mouza-Akalmegh, Dist. 24 Parganas (S), West Bengal-743504 and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives and based on the verification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs website,
we hereby report that during the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019, in our opinion, none of the director on the
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of Company by
Securities and Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory authority.

For Rajesh Kumar Shaw & Co.
Company Secretaries

Rajesh Kumar Shaw
Place : Kolkata (Proprietor)
Date : May 30, 2019 ACS No.: 32890 CP No.: 12112
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AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
International Conveyors Limited

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by International Conveyors Limited (‘the Company’),
for the year ended on March 31, 2019, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and
para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing
Regulations’).

Managements’ Responsibility

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the
conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditor’s Responsihility
3. Ourresponsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring

compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), to the extent
relevant, the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for
the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI
which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to us and the
representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied in all material respects with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations during the year ended March
31, 2019.

8. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Restriction on use

9. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company
to comply with therequirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other
purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept orassume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it maycome without our prior consent in writing.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAI Registration No.:302082E

Ajay Agrawal
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 017643
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DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT

A Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management Personnel has already been approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company. As stipulated under the provisions of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, all the Directors and the designated personnel in the Senior Management of the Company
have affirmed compliance with the said code for the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala
Place : Kolkata Managing Director
Date : May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658

MD/CFO CERTIFICATION

To,
The Members of
International Conveyors Ltd.

We, Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala, Managing Director and Ashok Kumar Gulgulia, Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify to the
Board that:

a)  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2019 and that
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
ended March 31, 2019 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls,
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee that:
i.  There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;
ii.  There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the period;

iii.  There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting.

For International Conveyors Ltd.

Rajendra Kumar Dabriwala Ashok Kumar Gulgulia
Place : Kolkata Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Date : May 30, 2019 DIN No. 00086658
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of International Conveyors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of International Conveyors Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘the Ind AS') and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and | Our Procedure:

disclosures of Investments and other related balances. | we have verified these investments with reference to the provisions
Investments include investments made by the Company in | of Ind AS as also internal policies and procedure of the Company as
various quoted and unquoted equity shares and preference | follows:

shares. a. carried out evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of
These investments constitute 64.80% of the Company’s the internal controls and performed substantive audit procedures.
total assets. b. Assessed and evaluated the process adopted for collection of
The valuation of each category of the aforesaid securities is information from various sources for determining fair value of
to be done as per the provisions of Ind AS which involves these investments.

collection of data/information. from various sources _SUCh c. Verified compliance with the presentation and disclosure
as Demat statement, financial statements of unlisted requirements as per Ind AS and the Act. This test was conducted
companies etc. Considering the complexities and extent for the entire population.

of judgement involved in the valuation, this has been
determined as Key Audit Matter.

Refer Note 5 to the standalone financial statements.
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Information Other than the Standalone financial statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

A Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

A Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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A Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

A Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

A Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “"Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

i.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

iii. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

iv. Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

v.  On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

vii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:
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Independent Auditors’ Report (contd)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements —Refer Note No. 38.1 to the standalone financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:302082E

(CA. Ajay Agrawal)

Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 17643
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Statement referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of
International Conveyors Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019.

)

vii)

a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of its
fixed assets.

b)  The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. To the best of our knowledge, no
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification and in our opinion the periodicity of such physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, clauses (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of paragraph 3 of the said
order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no, loans, guarantees and securities
granted in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable. Based on our audit procedures performed
and according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has complied with provisions of Section
186 of the Act in respect of investments.

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act
and the rules framed there under. The directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of products where pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government, the maintenance of Cost records has been prescribed under section 148(1) of the Act and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We, however, as not
required, have not made a detailed examination of such records.

a.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the records of the Company
as provided to us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and other statutory dues, to the extent applicable,
with appropriate authorities and no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at
March 31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

b.  The disputed statutory dues aggregating to ¥ 29.44 Lakhs that have not been deposited on account of matters pending
before appropriate authorities are as under:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Period to which Amount Forum where the dispute is
Dues pertain (X in Lakhs) pending
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2003-2004 2.00 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) - 17
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2013-2014 5.16 Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) - 17
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax August, 2012 to 22.28 Commissioner of CGST and
March, 2015 Central Excise
Total 29.44

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank. The Company has not taken any loan from financial
institutions or Government and has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) or term
loans during the year. Therefore, clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company.
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X)

xi)

Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, clause (xv) of
paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
are not applicable to the Company.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:302082E

(CA. Ajay Agrawal)

Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 17643
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of International Conveyors Limited (“the Company”’) as of
March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
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the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:302082E

(CA. Ajay Agrawal)
Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 17643
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Balance Sheet as at March 31,2019

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I.  ASSETS
(1) Non - current assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3 1,560.40 1,754.80
(b) Capital work in progress 3 119.70 119.70
(c) Intangible assets 4 1.74 6.74
(d) Financial assets
(i) Non - current investment 5 18,213.98 15,652.57
(i) Loans 6 33.58 31.16
(iii) Other financial assets 7 535.23 440.47
(e) Non - current tax assets (net) 8 145.20 126.52
(f)  Other non - current assets 9 1,310.25 0.25
(2) Current Assets
(@) Inventories 10 1,073.95 1,048.28
(b) Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables il 3,145.76 2,193.34
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 12.25 11.46
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 24.62 25.60
(iv) Loans 14 1,426.54 1,704.61
(v)  Other financial assets 15 61.85 111.17
(c) Other current assets 16 442.11 1,008.43
Total Assets 28,107.16 24,235.10
1l.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(@)  Share capital 17 675.00 675.00
(b)  Other equity 18 15,207.01 15,826.68
Liahilities
(1) Non- current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 19 - 0.25
(b)  Provisions 20 25.52 22.64
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 359.64 139.83
(d) Other non - current liabilties 22 0.68 1.35
(2) Current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 23 10,153.60 6,499.30
(i) Trade payables 24 1,560.92 930.70
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 3.95 17.93
(b)  Other current liabilities 26 49.18 48.03
(c)  Provisions 21 71.66 73.39
Total Equity and Liabhilities 28,107.16 24,235.10
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies and estimates 2
Other disclosures 38

The accompanying notes 1to 38 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For G. P. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. - 302082E

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019
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Director
DIN No. 00567070

Neha Khandelwal

R. K. Dabriwala
Managing Director
DIN No. 00086658

A. K. Gulgulia

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Pl'Oﬁt and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I.  Revenue from operations 28 1,171.50 5,143.39
Il.  Otherincome 29 936.63 739.83
IIl.  Total income (I+11) 8,714.13 5,883.22
IV.  Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 30 4,759.95 2,431.12
Purchases of stock-in-trade 31 221.42 647.49
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 32 29.97 (158.96)
work-in-progress
Excise duty = 298.25
Employee benefits expense 33 961.50 795.04
Finance costs 34 1,034.19 662.66
Depreciation and amortisation expense 209.18 249.27
Other Expenses 35 1,888.21 1,166.05
Total expenses 9,104.42 6,090.92
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (1) - (1V) (390.29) (207.70)
VI. Tax expense: 36
Current tax = -
Deferred tax 159.99 158.02
VII.  Profit/(Loss) for the year (V-VI) (550.28) (365.72)
VIIl. Other comprehensive income 37
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 31.12 3,274.61
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 59.82 (366.70)
Profit or Loss
Total other comprehensive income (28.70) 3,641.31
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)
(Comprising Profit/ (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year) (578.98) 3,275.59
X.  Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share ¥ 1/-)
(Refer Note No. 38.5)
- Basic (0.81) (0.54)
- Diluted (0.81) (0.54)
No. of shares used in computing earnings per share
- Basic 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000
- Diluted 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies and estimates 2
Other disclosures 38

The accompanying notes 1to 38 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. - 302082E

. M.P.Jhunjhunwala R. K. Dabriwala
CA. Ajay Agrawal Director Managing Director
Partner DIN No. 00567070 DIN No. 00086658
Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata Neha Khandelwal A. K. Gulgulia
Date: May 30, 2019 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax (390.29) (207.70)

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow provided by

operating activities :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 209.18 249.27
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 38.25 -
Profit/(Loss) on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (0.99) 0.03
Profit on sale of non-current investment (11.47) -
Liquidated damages / Rebate and discount 36.46 113.60
Dividend from non-current investment (19.43) (19.59)
Finance costs 1,034.19 662.66
Interest income (766.81) (621.50)
Sundry balance written back (2.95) (4.15)
Provision for doubtful deposit written back (0.50) -
Operating profit before working capital changes 125.70 172.62

Adjustmens to reconcile operating profit to cash flow provided by changes

in working capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (25.67) 89.63
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current financial assets 31.56 11.19
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (988.88) (809.76)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-current and current assets 566.32 (777.65)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 633.17 420.84
Increase/ (Decrease) in other non-current and current liabilities 0.48 (24.36)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 13.09 (10.52)
Increase/ (Decrease) in long term and short term provisions 1.15 (7.05)

231.22 (1,107.68)
Cash generated from operations 362.92 (935.06)
Direct Taxes (paid)/refund received (18.69) (8.82)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 344.23 (943.88)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,329.18) (15.11)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 10.39 -
Purchase of investments (5,402.93) (918.49)
Proceeds from sale of investments 3,361.41 24.83
Loan given to parties (5,359.78) (2,571.91)
Loan repaid by parties 5,595.39 2,506.03
Dividend received 3.35 3.45
Deposits with bank (original maturity more than 3 months) (78.24) (67.97)
Interest received 297.70 179.89
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (2,901.89) (859.22)
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/ (repayment) of long term borrowings (net) (0.25) (4.29)
Proceeds/ (repayment) of short term borrowings (net) 3,654.30 2,488.28
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax thereon) (40.69) (40.62)
Interest paid (1,054.91) (648.49)
Net cash from/(used in) Financing Activities 2,558.45 1,794.88
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.79 (8.22)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the begining of the year 11.46 19.68
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No. 12) 12.25 11.46

Notes :

1. Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 7

on Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Proceeds / (repayment) of short term borrowings qualify for disclosure on net basis.

Cash and cash equivalnets do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

4. Cash and cash equivalents as at the Balance Sheet date consists of :

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balances with banks on current accounts 8.00 5.80
Cash on hand 3.76 5.66
Others - Silver coins 0.49 -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 12.25 11.46

5. Figures in brackets represent cash outflow from respective activities.

6. Asbreakup of Cash and cash equivalents is also available in Note No. 12, reconcilation of items of Cash and cash equivalents as
per Cash Flow Statement with the respective items reported in the Balance Sheet is not required and hence not provided.

The accompanying notes 1to 38 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00567070

Neha Khandelwal
Company Secretary
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Statement of changes in eqUIty for the year ended March 31, 2019

(a) Equity Share Capital

(% in lakh)
For the year ended March 31, 2019 For the year ended March 31, 2018
Balance as at Changes in equity Balance as at Balance as at Changes in equity Balance as at
April 1, 2018 share capital during March 31, 2019 April 1, 2017 share capital during March 31, 2018
the year the year
675.00 = 675.00 675.00 - 675.00
(b) Other Equity
Reserve and surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Capital | Security | General | Retained Equity Remeasurement
Particulars Reserve | Premium | Reserve | earnings | instruments of defined Total
Reserve through other | benefit plans
comprehensive
income
Balance at April 1, 2017 39.42| 1,885.50| 5,504.58 179.56 4,982.65 -| 12,591.7
Transfer/Adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - -| (365.72) - -|  (365.72)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - - - - 3,634.84 6.47| 3,641.31
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - -| (365.72) 3,634.84 6.47| 3,275.59
Dividend paid - - - (33.75) - - (33.75)
Dividend distribution tax - - - (6.87) - - (6.87)
Transfer from other comprehensive - - - 26.93 - (26.93) -
income (remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation) (net of tax) to retained earning
Balance at March 31, 2018 39.42| 1,885.50| 5,504.58| (199.85) 8,617.49 (20.46) | 15,826.68
Transfer/Adjustments during the year - - - - - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - -| (550.28) - -| (550.28)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) - - - - (32.47) 3.77 (28.70)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - -| (550.28) (32.47) 3.77| (578.98)
Dividend paid - - -1 (33.75) - - (33.75)
Dividend distribution tax - - - (6.94) | - - (6.94)
Transfer from other comprehensive - - - 3.77 (3.1 -
income (remeasurement of defined benefit
obligation) (net of tax) to retained earning
Balance at March 31, 2019 39.42| 1,885.50| 5,504.58| (787.05) 8,585.02 (20.46) | 15,207.01
Corporate information 1
Significant accounting policies and estimates 2
Other disclosures 38

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For G. P. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R. K. Dabriwala
Managing Director
DIN No. 00086658

M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00567070

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019

Neha Khandelwal
Company Secretary

A. K. Gulgulia
Chief Financial Officer
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements asat March 31, 2019

1.

2.2

2.3

Corporate Information

International Conveyors Limited (“ICL" or “the Company”) is a public limited incorporated and domiciled in India. The
registered office of the Company is situated at Falta SEZ, Sector-l, near Pump House No. 3 Village & Mouza- Akalmegh,
Akalmegh-743504.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.
Its business consists of :

(@) Manufacturing and trading of Conveyor Belting,

(b) Trading of Ply Conveyor Belting, Steel Cord Conveyor Belting and fitting and accessories, and

(c) Generation and Sale of Power.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 was approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on May 30, 2019 and is subjected to the adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the
relevant presentation requirements of the Act.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS under the historical cost basis except for the
following :

i)  Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) - measured at fair value, and
ii) Defined benefits plan — plan assets measured at fair value.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration in exchange for goods and services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule |11 to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

The financial statements including notes thereon are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rupees” or “Rs.”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements including notes thereon have been
rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of Schedule |11 to the Act, unless stated otherwise.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE), depreciation and amortization

a)  All Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition with subsequent improvements thereto. Cost of
acquisition includes taxes, duties, inward freight and installation expenses.

Expenditure incurred on improvements/ modifications of fixed assets that increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance, e.g., increase in capacity / efficiency, are capitalized.

b) Depreciation is provided on written down value method as per Schedule |1 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the
useful life of the assets. In case of certain items of Plant and Equipments where useful life ranging from 10 to 30 years
has been considered based on technical assessment, which is different from the useful life prescribed under Schedule
I of the Companies Act, 2013. However, assets costing ¥ 5,000/- or less are depreciated fully in the year of addition.
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2.4

Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

Additions on account of improvements/ modifications, which becomes an integral part of the existing asset and either do
not have separate identity and/or are not capable of being used after the existing asset is disposed off, are depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the assets (improved /modified) they are attached with.

¢) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization. Computer software packages are
amortized over a period of five year on straight line basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company determines the classification of its financial assets and financial
liabilities at initial recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

(a) Financial assets

(i)

(if)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. The financial
assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank balances
and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
1) Atamortized cost,

2) At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and

3) At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

1)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

2)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Equity investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except in case of investment in
subsidiary carried at deemed cost and associate carried at cost. Deemed cost is the carrying amount under the
previous GAAP as at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in profit or loss. The Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements asat March 31, 2019
value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on
initial recognition and is irrevocable.

When the fair value has been determined based on level 3 inputs, the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price is deferred and after initial recognition deferred difference is recognized as
gain or loss to the extent it arises from change in input to valuation technique.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

(iii) De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

2.5  Financial liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at amortized
cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, derivative
financial instruments, etc.

(i) Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
1)  Financial liabilities at amortized cost, and

2)  Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains
and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization
process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
2.6  Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A derivative financial instrument, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks respectively and includes options. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.
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When the fair value has been determined based on level 3 inputs, the difference between the fair value at initial recognition
and the transaction price is deferred and after initial recognition deferred difference is recognized as gain or loss to the extent
it arises from change in input to valuation technique.

2.7  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in the
Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.8 Fair value measurement

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valuation of financial
instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement”.

For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets
and liahilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a
fair value measurement in both cases is the same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions
(i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the
liability).

Three widely used valuation techniques specified in the said Ind AS are the market approach, the cost approach and the
income approach which have been dealt with separately in the said Ind AS.

Each of the valuation techniques stated as above proceeds on different fundamental assumptions, which have greater or lesser
relevance, and at times there is no relevance of a particular methodology to a given situation. Thus, the methods to be adopted
for a particular purpose must be judiciously chosen. The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the
company being evaluated, the nature of industry in which it operates, the company’s intrinsic strengths and the purpose for
which the valuation is made.

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based
on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs).

2.9 Inventories

a)

Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realizable value. The cost in respect of raw materials and stores
and spares is determined on FIFO basis and in respect of finished goods and stock in process is determined on average
basis. Cost of raw materials and stores and spares include the taxes and duties other than those recoverable from taxing
authorities and expenses incidental to the procurement of the same. Cost in case of stock-in-process and finished goods
represent prime cost and appropriate portion of overheads.

Custom duty on bonded materials and excise duty on finished goods at factory are accounted for and included in cost of
inventory.
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2.10

2.1

2.12

Impairments of Assets
(a) Non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. In case
events and circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amounts of fixed assets is determined. An impairment
loss is recognized, whenever the carrying amount of assets belonging to the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of assets net selling price or its value in use. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of assets are discounted to their present value as appropriate.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the recoverable amount and such loss either no longer exists
or has decreased. Impairment loss/reversal thereof is adjusted to the carrying value of the respective assets, which in
case of CGU, are allocated to its assets on a prorate basis.

(b) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “Other expenses” in the profit or loss. ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions in Foreign Currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing as on the date of the transaction. Foreign
Currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated using closing rates whereas non monetary assets are
translated at the rate on the date of transaction. The loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange differences on settlement
of the foreign currency transaction during the year are recognized as revenue or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits would flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the revenue proceeds is received from customers.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received/receivable taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government.

With effect from Tst April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts there were not completed as of 1st April, 2018. Accordingly, the
comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to customers in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

The Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the
payment to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services by applying the following steps:

Step -1- Identify the contract with a customer;
Step -2- Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
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2.13

2.14

2.15

Step -3- Determine the transaction price;
Step -4-Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;
Step -5-Recognize the revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

The specific recognition criteria for revenue recognition are as follows:
Revenue from Operations:

a)  Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point of dispatch to the customers. Gross sales include excise duty, Goods
and Service Tax (GST) and rebate, discounts, claims, returns, central sales tax (CST) / value added tax (VAT) etc., are
excluded there from.

b) Sale of Electricity

Sale of Electricity is accounted for on delivery of Electricity to grid in terms of agreement with the Electricity Board.
Other Income:
a) Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate
(EIR). Interest income is included in “Other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b) Insurance and other claims are accounted for as and when admitted or realized.
¢) Dividend is recognized when the right to receive is established.

d) Al other income are accounted for on accrual basis.

Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

Expenses under primary heads such as salary, wages, consumption of stores etc., are being shown under respective heads and
have not been functionally reclassified.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expenses at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

The Company has Defined Contribution Plan for its employees retirement benefits comprising of Provident Fund and Pension
Fund. The Company makes regular contribution to Pravident Fund, which are fully funded and administered by the Government.
Contributions are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

The Company has Defined Benefit Plan comprising of Gratuity and Leave Encashment schemes. The Company contributes
to the Gratuity Fund under the Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme with Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) for future
payment of gratuity liability to its employees. Consequent to the adoption of Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) on
“Employee Benefits”, the liability for the Gratuity and Leave Encashment as at the year end has been determined on the basis
of an independent actuarial valuation in accordance with the method stated in Ind AS 19 Revised and such liability has been
adjusted/ provided in these financial statements.

The actuarial gain and losses comprise experience judgment and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
in which they arise.

Grants

Government Grants are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant would be received and the
Company would comply with all the conditions attached with them.
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2.16

2.17

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Cost incurred in relation to acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment are allocated to the
property, plant and equipment. Other borrowing cost are recognized as finance cost in the year in which they are incurred.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in Equity or in OCI.

a)

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCl and Equity are recognized in OCI and in
Equity respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws to the extent it is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availahility to set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that
the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as
a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statement. Contingent Liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes.

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined as at the end of each period presented. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for
each period presented.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (CODM).

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the Financial Statements of the Company as a whole. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have
been followed for segment reporting:

a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including inter
segment transfers.

Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between the segments which is
at cost in case of transfer of Company's intermediate and final products and estimated realizable value in case of by-
products.

b) Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on direct and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance with banks on current
accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the year ended 31st March,
2019:
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b)

>
>

>

Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Appendix B, foreign currency transactions and advance consideration to Ind AS 21 — The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes.

The application of Ind AS 115 and other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized
in prior periods as well as current period and are not expected to significantly affect the future periods.

Standards Issued but not yet Effective:

i)

if)

Ind AS 116

Ind AS 116 is effective for period beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. It will replace previous lease standard Ind
AS 7.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to accounting for finance leases under Ind
AS 7.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize a 'right-of-use asset' and a 'lease liability' for almost all leasing
arrangements. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind
AS 17. The lessor still has to classify leases as either finance or operating.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results of
operation.

Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to Ind AS 12

Appendix C has been added to Ind AS 12 which seeks to bring clarity to the accounting for uncertainties on income
tax treatment that are yet to be accepted by tax authorities and to reflect in the measurement of current and
deferred taxes.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results of
operation.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation, Amendments to Ind AS 109

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow
measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive
income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company does not expect this amendment to
have any impact on its financial statements.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement- Amendments to Ind AS 19

On 30th March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits, in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

>

>

to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after
a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

to recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus,
even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does
not have any impact on account of this amendment.

Annual Report 2018-19 63




Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (% in lakh)
Particulars Freehold | Leashold | Buildings | Plantand | Wind | CElectrical Office | Furniture Total Capital
land land Equipment | Mill | Installation | equipment and | Vehicles Work-in-
Fixtures progress
Gross Block
Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2018 8.50 0.45 399.73 1,318.89 | 465.66 18.69 10.47 13.84 3849 221472 119.70
Additions during the year - - - - - - 10.33 0.36 8.49 19.18 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 0.10 -| 2462 2412 -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 8.50 0.45 399.73| 1,318.89 | 465.66 18.69 20.70 1420 | 22.36| 2,269.18 119.70
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at 0.31 0.02 73.03 33294 7535 8.89 5.36 6.08 17.94| 519.92 -
April 1, 2018
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 0.15 0.01 31.02 12747 3235 2.50 3.53 1.60 5.55| 20418 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - - -| 1532 15.32 -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 0.46 0.03 104.05 460.41| 107.70 1.39 8.89 1.68 8.17| 1708.78 -
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 8.04 0.42| 295.68 858.48 | 357.96 7.30 11.81 6.52| 1419 1,560.40 119.70
Gross Block
Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2017 8.50 0.45 399.73 1,273.36 | 465.66 18.69 9.79 13.24 3849 222191 120.94
Additions during the year - - - 45.53 - - 1.06 0.60 - 4119 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 0.38 - - 0.38 1.24
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 8.50 0.45 399.73 1,318.89 | 465.66 18.69 10.47 13.84| 38.49| 227472 119.70
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at 0.17 0.01 38.51 171.05| 39.58 5.20 3.23 3.83 8.53 216.11 -
April 1, 2017
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 0.14 0.01 34.52 155.89 35.771 3.69 2.48 2.25 941| 2446 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 0.35 - - 0.35 -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 0.31 0.02 73.03 33294| 7535 8.89 5.36 6.08| 17.94| 519.92 -
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 8.19 0.42 326.71 985.96 | 390.31 9.80 5.1 7.75| 20.54 | 1,754.80 119.70

3.1 Refer Note 19(a)(i) and 23 in respect of charges created.

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Computer Software
Gross Block

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2018 16.78
Additions during the year -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 16.78
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at April 1, 2018 10.04
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 5.00
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 15.04
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 1.74
Gross Block

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2017 14.04
Additions during the year 2.74
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 16.78
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at April 1, 2017 493
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 51N
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 10.04
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 6.74
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5. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (% in lakh)

As at Asat

Particulars Re;INote March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
0.

No. of Shares Value No. of Shares Value

(i) Investment in Equity Instruments
(Fully paid-up unless otherwise stated)

Quoted :

(Valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income)

Dunlop India Limited (Face Value of Share %10/ each) 25 = 25 -

Radaan Media Works (1) Limited (Face Value of Share 32/- each) 63,190 1.80 63,190 1.30

Tide Water Oil (India) Limited (Face Value of Share Z5/- each) 445 22.81 445 21.22

Elpro International Limited (Face Value of Share %1/- each) 2,3455160| 10,871.47| 2,01,89,160 8,802.47

R.C.A.Limited (Face Value of Share 5/- each) - - 21,096 1.35
2,358,820 10,896.08 | ?2,02,79,916 8,832.34

Unquoted :

Trade (At cost)
In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies

International Belting Limited (Face Value of Share %10/- each) 7,50,000 729.00| 750,000 729.00
Conveyor Holdings Pte Ltd. (Face Value of Share $1/- each) 15,00,100 951.55| 15,00,100 951.55
International Conveyors America Limited (Face Value of Share $.0001 each) 10,000 — 10,000 -

22,60,100 1,680.55 | 22,60,100 1,680.55

Others (Valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income)
In Equity Shares of other bodies corporate:

| G E (India) Private Limited (Face Value of Share %1/- each) 7,750 38.46 7,750 3713
Pure Coke Ltd. (Face Value of Share ¥10/- each) 28,64,560 —-| 28,64,560 271.00
Dabri Properties and Trading Company Limited (Face Value of Share ¥10/- each) 60 0.02 60 0.02
R.C.A.Limited (Face Value of Share 35/- each) 1 21,096 29.19 - -

28,99,466 67.67| 28,72,370 308.15

Investment In Preference Shares

In 12 % Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Other body corporate
Elpro International Limited (Face Value of Share Z10/- each) 2 15,00,000 5,314.68| 15,00,000 4,831.53
In 3 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares of Other body corporate:

Leaf Fashions Private Limited (Face Value of Share 310/- each) 4,50,000 50.00 - -
In 6 % Non-Cumulative Redeemable Optionally Convertible Preference
Shares of Other body corporate:

Qasis Fashion World Private Limited (Face Value of Share ¥10/- each) 8,00,000 80.00 - -
Ring Investrade Private Limited (Face Value of Share Z10/- each) 12,50,000 125.00 - -
40,00,000 5,569.68 | 15,00,000 4,831.53

18,213.98 15,652.57

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 10,896.08 8,832.34
Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments 10,896.08 8,832.34
Aggregate amount of Un-Quoted Investments 1,317.90 6,820.23

Note: 1. Sharesof R.C.A. Limited have become unlisted from Stock Exchange during the year.
2. These preference shares will have the maximum term of 15 years from the date of allotment. However, these shares can be redeemed earlier at
the option of the Company. The dividend on these preference shares will be cumulative and will be receivable at the rate of 12% p.a.
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(% in lakh)
6. LOANS (Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Security deposit 33.58 31.16
33.58 31.16
7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)
Fixed deposit with banks
(Bank depposits with more than 12 months maturity) 435.56 336.88
Dividend receivable 99.67 83.59
535.23 440.47
8. NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance tax including tax deducted at source 2,364.78 2,346.10
Less: Provision for taxation 2,220.84 143.94| 2,220.84 125.26
Advance fringe benefit tax 13.50 13.50
Less: Provision for taxation 12.24 1.26 12.24 1.26
145.20 126.52
9. OTHER NON- CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances 1,310.00 -
Advances other than capital advances
- With statutory authorities 0.25 0.25
1,310.25 0.25
10. INVENTORIES
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw materials 181.84 192.58
Raw materials in transit 69.88 11.65
Work-in-process 293.70 497.65
Finished goods 147.87 294.61
Finished goods in transit 293.01 2.34
Stock in trade 62.60 32.55
Stores and spares 23.99 15.73
Loose tools 1.06 1.17
1,073.95 1,048.28
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11. TRADE RECEIVABLES
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Unsecured
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment
Considered Good 547.88 259.29
Considered Doubtful 12.14 1214
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables (12.14) (12.14)
547.88 259.29
Others
Considered good 2,597.88 1,934.05
3,145.76 2,193.34
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Balances with banks
On Current accounts 8.00 5.80
Cash on hand 376 5.66
Others- Silver Coins 0.49 -
12.25 11.46
13. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Fixed deposit with bank 20.92 21.36
(Original maturity period upto 12 months)
Unpaid dividend accounts 3.70 4.24
24.62 25.60
14. LOANS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good
I[_ngpesr T\m :ilvoa.n:gcge-sgﬁo related parties 84144 1130.65
Loans and advances to other bodies corporate 495.26 450.00
Security deposits 89.84 103.73
Others = 1,426.54 20.23 1,704.61
Unsecured, considered doubtful 52.45 14.70
Less : Provision for doubtful deposit (52.45) - (14.70) -
1,426.54 1,704.61
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Note :
Disclosure pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

1.

Regulations, 2015

(% in lakh)

Loans and advances in the nature of loan to Amount Maximum amount Amount Maximum amount
subsidiaries outstandingasat | outstanding | outstandingasat | outstanding
March 31,2019 | during theyear | March 31,2018 | during the year
ended 2018-19 ended 2017-18
International Belting Limited = 1.50 - 1.00
Conveyor Holdings Pte Limited 666.45 666.45 585.72 585.72
International Conveyors America Limited, INC 1.19 494.02 494.02 494.02

2. Loans and advances are receivable on demand. The purpose of the utilisation of loan by the loanee Company is for general corporate purpose.
15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Interest accrued but not due on
Fixed deposits with banks 17.59 31.75
Others 2.40 19.99 - 31.75
Others
- Insurance claim receivable = 66.37
- CMPDI Fees 9.02 3.59
- Receivable on account of derivative contract 32.84 41.86 9.46 79.42
61.85 m.a
16. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances other than capital advances
Other advances
- With statutory authorities 311.56 279.04
- Advances to suppliers and others 32.97 15.09
- Others 97.58 714.30
442,11 1,008.43
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(% in lakh)
17. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Particulars No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares shares
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of par value T 1/- each 9,80,00,000 980.00 | 9,80,00,000 980.00
Preference shares of par value ¥ 100/- each 20,000 20.00 20,000 20.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of par value % 1/- each 6,75,00,000 675.00 | 6,75,00,000 675.00
675.00 675.00
(c) Forfeited shares 250 -@ 250 -@
675.00 675.00

@ % 250/- shown as nil due to rounding off.
(d) There is no movement in the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Out of the above issued shares, the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 1/- each. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount in proportion of their shareholding.

(f)  Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the total number of equity shares issued by the Company:

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Name of the shareholder No. of % of No. of 9% of
shares held | holding | shares held | holding
Surbhit Dabriwala 88,24,859 13.07| 8824859 13.07
Yamini Dabriwala 64,09,900 9,50 64,09,900 9.50
Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited 32,38,962 480 50,15,997 143
Cresta Fund Limited 50,00,000 141 50,00,000 141
Eriska Investment Fund Limited 16,89,368 2.50 61,80,000 9.16
Lotus Global Investments Limited 2199400 415 4239400 6.37
| G E (India) Private Limited 8834710 13.09 54,62,534 8.09
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18. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(a) Capital reserves
Balances as per last account 39.42 39.42
(b) General reserve 5,504.58 5,504.58
Less:Transfer to surplus = -
5,504.58 5,504.58
(c) Securities Premium
Balances as per last account 1,885.50 1,885.50
(d) Retained earnings
Balance as per last account (199.85) 179.56
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the year (550.28) (365.72)
Add: Transfer from general reserve = -
Add: Transfer from other comprehensive income 3.7 26.93
Less: Appropriations
Equity dividend (33.75) (33.75)
Tax on equity dividend (6.94) (6.87)
(787.05) (199.85)
(e) Other comprehensive income
Balances as per last account 8,597.03 4,982.65
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (28.70) 3,641.31
Less: Transferred to retained earnings (3.717) (26.93)
8,564.56 8,597.03
Other Equity (atbtctdte) 15,207.01 15,826.68

Notes:

i) General Reserve - General reserve is a free reserve and can be utilised for any general purpose like issue of bonus shares, payment of dividend,
buy back of shares etc.

ii)  Securities Premium - The amount received in excess of the par value has been classified as Securities premium.
iii) Retained earnings - Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
iv) Capital Reserve - The amount represents capital subsidy received from Government of Maharashtra.
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19. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Carried at amortized cost

Secured loans

Vehicle finance loan

From bank - -

From others - -

Unsecured Loan

Sales Tax Deferment Loan - 0.25
- 0.25

(a) Nature of securities
(i) Vehicle finance loan from banks and others are secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired against the said loan.

(b) Terms of repayment

Name of the banks/entities Rate of Amount outstanding asat | Amount outstanding asat | | Period of maturity No. of Amount

interest March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 w.r.t the balance installments of each
(ROI) sheet date as at | outstanding as at | installments

Current Non current Current Non current March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
HDFC Bank 10.00% = = - - - - -
Axis Bank 10.50% - - - - - - -
HDFC Bank 12.26% = = - - - -
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. # N.1N% = = 2.21 - - - -
Toyota Finance Service India Ltd. 10.14% - - - - - - -
Sales tax deferrement loan Interest free 0.25 = 2.84 0.25 1 years 1 Note -2
Total 0.25 = 51 0.25
Note:

1. # Installment includes interest.
2. Installment %0.28 lakh for the financial year 2019-20.

20. LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Provision for employee benefits - unavailed leave

(Refer Note No. 38.6) 17.02 14.98
Provision for decommissioning of assets 8.50 7.66
25.52 22.64
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21  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing
Balance profit or loss other compre- Balance
hensive income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 138.60 20.65 - 159.25
Investment 203.07 186.15 57.79 447.01
341.67 206.80 57.19 606.26
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 21.30 5.72 (2.03) 30.99
Unabsorbed depreciation 166.25 26.81 - 193.06
Provision for doubtful debt and deposit 8.29 14.28 - 22.57
201.84 46.81 (2.03) 246.62
Net deferred tax liability 139.83 159.99 59.82 359.64
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing
Balance profit or loss other compre- Balance
hensive income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 16.83 121.77 - 138.60
Investment 488.55 84.1 (369.59) 203.07
505.38 205.88 (369.59) 341.67
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 33.28 (3.09) (2.89) 21.30
Unabsorbed depreciation 114.31 51.94 - 166.25
Provision for doubtful debt and deposit 9.29 (1.00) - 8.29
156.88 47.85 (2.89) 201.84
Net deferred tax liability 348.50 158.03 (366.70) 139.83

22. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Deferred gain on changes in value of financial liabilities 0.68 1.35
0.68 1.35
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23. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(% in lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Secured Loan

From Bank

- Working capital facilities from banks (Repayable on demand)

1,632.17

1,553.44

- Others - 1,632.17 229.63 1,783.07

Unsecured Loan

Others 8,521.43 4716.23
10,153.60 6,499.30

Nature of securities

Working Capital facility from Bank are secured by hypothecation of Company's entire stock, book debts and other current assets both present and
future and also secured by first charge on fixed assets of the Company including land and building (both units at Aurangabad and Falta). This is

further secured by personal guarantee by one of the directors of the Company.

24. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(Refer Note No. 38.3) 100.23 117.56
Total outstanc.ilng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 1460.69 1560.92 81314 930,70
small enterprises

1,560.92 930.70

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Current maturities of long-term loan

Current maturities of vehicle finance loan = 2.21
Current maturities of sales tax deferment loan 0.25 2.84
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings = 1.00
Interest accrued and due on borrowings = 7.58

Other payables
Unpaid dividend 3.70 4.24
3.95 17.93

26. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Statutory liabilities 49.16 48.03

Others 0.02 -
49.18 48.03
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Provision for employee benefits

- Unavailed leave

11.92

12.80

- Gratuity (Refer Note No. 38.6)

59.74 71.66

60.59 73.39

71.66

73.39

Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

28. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Sale of Products

PVC fire resistant antistatic solid woven coal conveyor belting 7,051.21 3,390.53
Trading Goods
Ply and steel cord conveyor belting = 529.1
Fittings and accessories 315.21 315.21 288.86 817.97
Wind Energy* 298.98 239.51
7,665.40 4,448.01
Other Operating Revenue
Miscellaneous sales 16.15 8.42
Sundry balance written back 2.95 4.15
Duty credit scrip received 89.87 682.81
Duty drawback received 3.13 112.10 - 695.38
1,771.50 5,143.39
& Netof 353 s (s st TG '] eing i s 7691808 ©6.26476
29. OTHER INCOME
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortized cost 766.81 621.50
Dividend income 19.43 19.59
Rent 0.30 0.30
Foreign exchange gain (net) 110.37 78.85
Profit on sale of non-current investment 11.41 -
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.99 -
Other receipts 26.82 19.59
Provision for Doubtful Deposit Written Back 0.50 -
936.63 739.83
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30. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Polyester yarn 1,748.75 779.55
Spun yarn 52.65 21.67
Cotton yarn 332.41 198.07
Chemicals
(i) PVC Resin 903.08 509.14
(i) Phosphate Plasticizer 1,040.38 491.69
(iii) Others 682.68 431.00
4,759.95 2,431.12
31. PURCHASE
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Purchase of stock in trade:

Ply and steel cord conveyor belting = 501.55
Fittings and accessories 221.42 145.94
221.42 647.49
32. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Opening stock

Finished goods (including in transit ) 296.95 265.77
Less : Excise duty 24.81
296.95 240.96

Work-in-process 497.65 350.93
Stock in trade (including in transit ) 32.55 76.30
821.15 668.19

Less : Closing stock

Finished goods (including in transit ) 440.88 296.95
Less : Excise duty -
440.88 296.95

Work-in-process 293.70 497.65
Stock in trade (including in transit ) 62.60 32.55
797.18 821.15

29.97 (158.96)
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33. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries and allowances 898.40 730.33
Contribution to provident and other funds 24.48 31.15
Staff welfare expenses 38.62 33.56
961.50 795.04
34. FINANCE COST
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest expense 983.53 623.86
Other Borrowing Cost 47.40 33.45
Applicable loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 3.26 5.35
1,034.19 662.66
35. OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Consumption of stores and spare Parts 15.07 11.99
Power and fuel 316.17 163.82
Rent 13.28 60.09
Repairs
Buildings 0.33 0.03
Machinery 43.66 33.24
Others 91.21 135.20 48.02 81.29
Insurance 20.23 18.99
Rates and taxes 6.88 4.34
Travelling and conveyance 46.11 64.06
Directors' fees 5.10 6.21
Payment to auditor
As auditor for statutory audit 1.70 1.70
For taxation matters 0.30 0.40
For other services 1.94 3.94 3.56 5.66
Transport, packing and forwarding 792.03 319.52
Commission on sales 155.63 50.64
Legal and professional fees 126.42 173.57
Subscription and donation 0.41 2.55
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 38.25 -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment = 0.03
Miscellaneous expenses 213.43 203.29
1,888.21 1,166.05
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

36. TAX EXPENSE

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

A.  Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax

Income Tax for earlier years

Total current tax

Deferred tax 159.99 158.02
Total 159.99 158.02
B.  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax
On items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.03 2.89
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 57.79 (369.59)
Total 59.82 (366.70)
Reconciliation of Tax Expense
Profit before tax (390.29) (207.70)
Applicable tax rate 34.944% 30.900%
Computed tax expense (A) (136.38) (64.18)
Adjustments for:
Income exempt for tax purpose (6.79) (6.05)
CSR expenditure = 0.62
Effect of tax relating to uncertain tax positions 303.16 227.63
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the 3
current tax of prior years
Net adjustments (B) 296.37 222.20
Tax expense recognised in profit or loss (A+B) 159.99 158.02
37. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re- measurement of defined benefit plans 5.80 9.36
Gains/(Lossgs) on measuring equity instruments through other 2532 3,265.25
comprehensive income
31.12 3,274.61
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 59.8 (366.70)
profit or loss
(28.70) 3,641.31
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES
1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) in respect of :
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Contingent liabilities
a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt :
(i)  Income Tax matter under Appeal 32.62 32.62
(ii) Service Tax matter under Appeal 24.09 24.09
b) Guarantees:
(i) Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Company 451.59 862.70

The Company's pending litigation comprises of claim against the Company and proceeding pending tax/statutory/

Government authorities. The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate
provisions, and disclosed the contingent liabilities, where applicable, in its Financial Statements. The Company does not
expects the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its financial position. Future cash outflows in
respect of [a (i), (ii) & (iii)] above are dependent upon the outcome of judgments / decisions.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for :

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
March 31, 2018

a)  On capital account

143

The Company has certain cancellable operating lease arrangements for office/ residential accomodation and for use of

machineries with a lease period of one to five years which can be further extended after mutual consent and agreement.
The lease agreement can be terminated after giving a notice as per the terms of the lease by either of the party. Expenditure
incurred on account of operating lease rentals during the year and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss amounts to

%12.57 lakh (Previous Year 10.57 lakh).

Based on the information/documents available with the Company, information as per the requirement of section 22 of the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 with respect to trade payables and payable to suppliers of capital

goods are as follows :
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DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 AND

SCHEDULE 11 TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Balance of Trade Payables as at the end of the year
- Principal amount due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises* 100.23 117.56
- Interest amount due to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 2.00 0.58
102.23 118.14
Paid during the year
Principal amount (including interest) paid to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
beyond the appointed date
- Principal amount 230.63 131.41
- Interest thereon = -
Principal amount (excluding interest) paid to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
beyond the appointed date
Others
- The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid during the year = -
- The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding _ _
years
230.63 131.41

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

*Included in the line item "Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises" under Note No. 24.

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities: 2018-19 2017-18
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year = 1.81
(b) Amount spent during the year in cash - 2.00
. ) Year ended Year ended
Earning Per Share (EPS) 31.03.2019 31.03.2018
(a) Profit / (Loss) attributable to Shareholders (% in lakh) (550.28) (365.72)
(b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000
(c) Nominal Value of Equity Share () 1 1
(d) Basic and Diluted EPS (3) (0.81) (0.54)
Employee Benefits:
As per Indian Accounting Standard- 19 "Employee Benefits', the disclosures of Employee Benefits are as follows:
a)  Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan recognized as expenses for the year are as under:
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 6.51 6.13
Employers Contribution to Pension Fund 141 7.88
Employer's Contribution to Employees State Insurance Scheme 2.37 1.98

b)  The disclosure as per the Indian Accounting Standard 19 (AS-19) “Employee Benefits” are given below:

The Company operates post retirement benefit plans as following:
Funded: Gratuity.
Non Funded: Leave Encashment
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38 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
6  Employee Benefits (Contd.)

Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuarial reports as on March 31, 2019 (% in lakh)
. Gratuity (Funded
Particulars e ( 2)017-18
A.  Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current Service Cost 6.18 1.23
Past Service Cost = 3.76
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset 4.33 4.18
Curtailment = -
Settlement - _
Total Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss* 10.51 15.17
B.  Other comprehensive Income:
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from :
- Change in demographic assumptions (0.05) -
- Change in financial assumptions (0.52) (3.34)
- Change in experience assumptions (4.86) (4.85)
l[rlfsél;::]/Loss on plan assets excluding amount included in Interest (0.37) (1.18)
Components of defined costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (5.80) (9.37)
C.  Change in the Fair Value of Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 175.30 183.50
Interest Income 12.44 11.93
Contributions by the Employer 5.69 11.70
Mortality Charges and Taxes (0.14) (0.13)
Benefits paid (24.58) (32.88)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest Income -
Gains/ (Loss) 0.37 1.18
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 169.08 175.30
D.  Change in Defined Benefit Obligations :
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the beginning of the year 235.89 249.85
Current Service Cost 6.18 1.23
Past Service Cost = 3.76
Interest Cost 16.77 16.11
Benefits Paid (24.58) (32.88)
Remeasurements on obligation - (Gains)/ Loss (5.44) (8.18)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the end of the year 228.82 235.89
E.  Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at the year end:
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations 228.82 235.89
Fair Value of Plan Assets 169.08 175.30
Liability /(Assets) recognized in the Balance Sheet 59.74 60.59
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(% in lakh)

Particulars 2013-1(;““'“ (FundEdz]g-n-]g

F.  Principal Actuarial Assumptions used :
Discounted Rate (per annum) Compound 7.60% 7.50%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets 7.50% 6.90%
Rate of Salary increase (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Retirement Age ( Year) 60 60
e

G.  Major category of Plan assets as a % of the Total Plan Assets
as at the yearend :
Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%
High quality corporate bonds 0.00% 0.00%
Equity shares of listed Companies 0.00% 0.00%
Property 0.00% 0.00%
Special deposit scheme 0.00% 0.00%
Funds managed by the insurer 100.00% 100.00%
Others 0.00% 0.00%

H.  Maturity analysis of the Benefit Payments :
Year 1 144.39 151.09
Year 2 11.38 14.74
Year 3 21.25 12.36
Year 4 11.16 26.30
Year 5 24.85 11.91
Next 5 Years 51.71 71.87

The company has contributed 11.70 lakh (Previous year ¥14.65 lakh) to its gratuity

fund in 2017. The company has informed me that it intends to contribute ¥61.00

lakh (Previous year 12.00 lakh) towards its gratuity fund in 2019.

I.  Sensitivity analysis on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations:
Discount rate + 100 basis point 223.88 230.75
Discount rate - 100 basis point 234.31 241.57
Salary increase rate + 100 basis point 233.33 240.49
Salary increase rate - 100 basis point 224.69 231.65
Withdrawl rate + 100 basis point 228.79 236.01
Withdrawl rate - 100 basis point 228.67 235.76

Sensitivity analysis indicates the infulence of a reasonable change in certain

significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present Value of Obligation (PVO)

and aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis

is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact.
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

6  Employee Benefits (Contd.)
Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuarial reports as on March 31, 2019 (% in lakh)

Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
2018-19 2017-18

Particulars

A.  Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current Service Cost 2.60 3.54
Acquisition (Gain)/Loss = -
Past Service Cost = -

Net Interest (Income)/Expense 1.95 1.92
Curtailment = -
Settlement = -
Remeasurements Cost/ (credit) for the year 0.14 (3.51)
Total Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss* 4.69 1.95

B.  Change in the Fair Value of Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year = -
Interest Income = -
Contributions by the Employer — -
Mortality Charges and Taxes = -

Benefits paid = -

Amount paid on settlement = -

Return/(Loss) on plan assets excluding amount included in Interest

[ncome

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year — -
C.  Change in Defined Benefit Obligations :

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the beginning of the year 21.78 29.82
Current Service Cost 2.60 3.54
Interest Cost 1.95 1.92
Benefits Paid (3.53) (3.99)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses 0.14 (3.51)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the end of the year 28.94 21.78
D.  Reconciliation of Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Fair
Value of Assets:
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the end of the year 28.94 21.78
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year = -
Liability /(Assets) recognized in the Balance Sheet 28.94 21.78
E.  Principal Actuarial Assumptions used :
Discounted Rate (per annum) Compound 7.60% 7.50%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets = -
Rate of Salary increase (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
F.  Maturity analysis of the Benefit Payments :
Year 1 11.92 12.80
Year 2 1.34 1.56
Year 3 3.02 0.93
Year 4 1.11 2.82
Year 5 3.30 1.19
Next 5 Years 12.52 12.25

82 Annual Report 2018-19




Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements asat March 31, 2019

[ ]
[’1 International Conveyors Limited

(% in lakh)
Particulars Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
2018-19 2017-18
G.  Sensitivity analysis on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations:
(Refer Note)
Discount rate + 100 basis point 21.70 26.66
Discount rate - 100 basis point 30.34 29.04
Salary increase rate + 100 basis point 30.15 28.86
Salary increase rate - 100 basis point 21.84 26.79

Sensitivity analysis indicates the infulence of a reasonable change in certain
significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation (PVO)
and aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis
is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact.

*Included in “Salaries, Wages and Bonus” and “Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds” under “Employee benefits
expense” on Note 33.

The expected return on Plan Assets is based on the actuarial expectation of the average long-term rate of return expected. The
discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Government bonds as at the balance sheet date

7

Segment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments":
Operating Segments:

a) Conveyor Belting  b) Wind Energy  c) Trading Goods

Identification of Segments:

The chief operating decision maker monitor the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss
and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segments have been identified on the
basis of the nature of products/services and have been identified as per the quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS.

Segment Revenue and Results:

The expenses and incomes which are not attributable to any business segment are shown as unallocated expenditure (net of
unallocated income)

Segment Assets and Liabilities:

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of property, plant and equipments,
trade and other recievables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents etc.

Segment liabilities primarily includes trade payables, borrowings and other liabilities.

Common assets and liahilities which cannot be allocated to any of the segments are shown as a part of unallocated Corporate
assets/liabilities.
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
7 Segment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments": (Contd.)

(a) Information about primary business segments : (% in lakh)
RO Conveyor Belting Wind Energy Trading Goods Unallocated Corporate Total Amount
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Segment Revenue
Saleand Senvicesto Extemal | 506y 11 330053| 29898 23951 31521 817.97 - -| 766540|  4448.01
customers
Other operating revenue = - = - = - 112.10 695.38 112.10 695.38
Fg:’:s"s‘)‘e from operations 7051.21|  3,39053 298.98 239.51 315.21 817.97 11210 695.38| 777750  5,143.39
Less : Excise Duty = 298.25 = - = - = - = 298.25
Net Turnover 7,051.21 3,092.28 298.98 239.51 315.21 817.97 112.10 695.38 1,171.50 4,845.14
Segment Results (31029)|  (216.82) .39 101.06 116.42 84.09 - - (22.48) (31.67)
E::!Lﬁtw Corporate - - - - - - mey|  pmen|  gney| ()
(31029)|  (216.82) 171.39 101.06 116.42 8409  (11.83)|  (13487)|  (13431)|  (166.54)
Interest Expenses - - - - - -l (1,03419) (662.66)|  (1,034.19) (662.66)
Interest Income = - = - = - 766.81 621.50 766.81 621.50
s - ) - - - - . )
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (31029)|  (216.82) .39 101.06 116.42 84.00| (367.80)|  (176.03)| (390.29)|  (207.70)
Income Tax = - = - = - 159.99 158.02 159.99 158.02
Profit After Tax (310.29)|  (216.82) 17.39 101.06 116.42 84.00|  (527.79)| (334.05)|  (550.28)|  (365.72)
(b) Other information :
Particulars Conveyor Belting Wind Energy Trading Goods Unallocated Corporate Total Amount
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18
Segment Assets 5,811.19 5,611.96 443.07 462.38 95.66 113.78 = - 6,349.92 6,188.12
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - - - - 21751.24 18,046.98 21757.24 18,046.98
Total Assets 5,811.19 5,611.96 443.07 462.38 95.66 113.78 21,751.24| 18,046.98 28,107.16 |  24,235.10
Segment Liabilities (1715.50)|  (1,283.39) (13.73) (16.99) (9.41) (#1.82) -| (1738.64)| (1342.20)
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities - - - - - -| (10486.51)| (6,391.22)| (10,486.51)| (6,391.22)
Total Liabilities (1M550)| (1,283.39) (13.13) (16.99) (9.41) (41.82)| (10,486.51)| (6,391.22)| (12,225.15)| (1.733.42)
Cost incurred during the period to
acquire segment fixed assets 9.86 49.14 = - = - 9.32 0.79 19.18 49.93
Depreciation / Amortisation 170.29 203.40 32.35 3571 = - 6.54 10.10 209.18 249.21

Note: (i) Conveyor Belting segment includes manufacturing and sale of PVC Conveyor Belting.
(i) Wind Energy Segment includes generation, supply and sale of Wind Power (Electricity).
(iii) Unallocated / Corporate Segment includes Corporate, Administrative and Financing activity
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7  Segment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments": (Contd.)

() Reconcilations of amounts reflected in the financial statements

(i) Reconcilation of assets (% in lakh)
Particulars As at st
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Segment operating assets 28,107.16 24,235.10
Total assets 28,107.16 24,235.10
(ii) Reconcilation of liabilities
Particulars As at st
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Segment operating liabilities 12,225.15 1,733.42
Total liabilities 12,225.15 1,733.42
(d) Information about secondary business segments :
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Revenue by geographical market

Sale of products

Domestic 3,010.95 2,475.92

Export 4,654.45 1,972.09
Total 7,665.40 4,448.01
Assets

Trade receivables (net of provision for doubtful debt)

Within India 507.93 992.40

Outside India 2,637.83 1,200.94
Total 3,145.76 2,193.34

38

OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

8  Details of loan given, investments made, guarantee or security provided covered under section 186 (4) of the Companies

Act, 2013 :

All loans, investments, guarantees and securities as disclosed in respective notes are provided for business purposes.

i) Details of Loans given:

The particulars of loans given are as under:

Name of the Loanee Loan given Loan refunded Amount of loan | Purpose of loan taken by the
oustanding on | loanee
31.03.2019
)

Elpro Estates Ltd. 3,560.99 3,560.99 - | General corporate purpose
(755.00) (755.00) ()

International Belting Ltd. 1.50 1.50 - | General corporate purpose
(1.00) (1.00) ()

Elpro International Ltd. - 190 - | General corporate purpose
(790.00) (807.15) (1.90)

Pure Coke Ltd. 1,074.25 956.01 173.80 | General corporate purpose
(464.19) (651.13) (43.01)

P C Chanda & Co Pvt. Ltd. - 350.00 — | General corporate purpose
(100.00) ) (350.00)

Espeea Promoters & Developers Pvt. Ltd. - 100.00 - | General corporate purpose
(50.00) (50.00) (100.00)

Conveyor Holdings Pte Ltd. - - 666.45 | General corporate purpose
W) =) (585.72)

International Conveyors America Ltd., Inc - 494.02 —| General corporate purpose
=) =) (494.02)

Aurangabad Auto Engineering Pvt Ltd 185.00 - 193.75 | General corporate purpose
W) @ )

Meybuen Ventures Pvt Ltd 50.00 - 52.13 | General corparate purpose
W) =) ()

Mudra Denim Pvt Ltd. 25.00 - 26.18 | General corporate purpose
=) =) )

Next Generation Mobiles 200.00 200.00 - | General corporate purpose
W) @ )

Pahari Projects Pvt Ltd. 60.00 - 62.73 | General corparate purpose
W) =) )

Orissa Steel Trading Corporation 150.00 - 160.46 | General corporate purpose
=) @ )

Shree Shyam Coal Co Ltd 13.00 13.00 - | General corporate purpose
=) =) ()
Total 5,325.74 5,689.42 1,335.50
(2,160.19) (2,264.28) (1,580.65)

Note : Figures in bracket relating to previous year.

(i) Details of Investments made :

The particulars of investments made are given under "Non-current investment" under Note No. 5.

(iii) Details of guarantee given and security provided:

The Company has not given any guarantee and has not provided any security.

38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
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9  Related party disclosures :
(a) Name of the related parties and description of relationship :

(i) Subsidiaries (control exists) :
1) International Belting Limited,
2) Conveyor Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore,
3) International Conveyors America Limited, INC,
4) International Conveyors Australia Pty Limited (Australia)

(100% subsidiary of Conveyor Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore).

(ii) Key Management Personnel :
Shri R. K. Dabriwala - Managing Director

(iii) Enterprises where key management personnel and their relatives have substantial interest and/or significant
influence:
1) R.CA. Limited
2) Pure Coke Limited,
3) Elpro International Limited,
4) | G E (India) Private Limited.
5) Elpro Estates Limited
6) Paradigm Finance Limited
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

10  Financial instruments - Accounting, Classification and Fair Value measurements :

A. Financial instruments by category (% in lakh)

Particulars Refer March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
NoteNo. | FyTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised| FVTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial Assets
Investments 5 —-| 10,963.75| 7,250.23 -| 9,40.49| 6,512.08
Trade receivables 1 = -| 3145.76 - - 2193.34
Cash and cash equivalents 12 = = 12.25 - - 11.46
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 = = 24.62 - - 25.60
Loans 6 and 14 = -| 1,460.12 - - 1,735.77
Other financial assets 7and 15 = = 597.08 - - 551.64
Total —| 10,963.75( 12,490.06 —-| 9,140.49( 11,029.89
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 19 and 23 = -| 10,153.60 - -| 6,499.55
Trade payables 24 = -| 1,560.92 - - 930.70
Other financial liabilities 25 = = 3.95 - - 17.93
Total = -| NM,718.47 - -| 7,448.18

B. Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i) Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
financial assets, short term loans from borrowings from banks and financial institutions, trade payables and other
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Company uses the following fair value hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments:

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The following tables provide the fair value hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

a recurring basis:

(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

Particulars Date of Valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2019

Financial Assets

At FVTOCI

Investment in equity intstruments 31/03/2019 10,896.08 - 7,317.90
Total Financial Assets 10,896.08 - 7,317.90
Particulars Date of Valuation Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

As at March 31, 2018

Financial Assets

At FVTOCI

Investment in equity intstruments 31/03/2018 8,832.34 - 6,820.23
Total Financial Assets 8,832.34 - 6,820.23
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

10  Financial instruments - Accounting, Classification and Fair Value measurements : (Contd.)

(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

(% in lakh)

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
i::}::f Fair Value i:::y'::f Fair Value
Financial Assets
Investments 18,213.98| 18,213.98 15,652.57 15,652.57
Trade receivables 3,145.76 3,145.76 2,193.34 2,193.34
Cash and cash equivalents 12.25 12.25 11.46 11.46
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 24.62 24.62 25.60 25.60
Loans 1,460.12 1,460.12 1,735.77 1,735.77
Other financial assets 597.08 597.08 551.64 551.64
Total 23,453.81| 23,453.81| 20,170.38| 20,170.38
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,153.60| 10,153.60 6,499.55 6,499.55
Trade payables 1,560.92 1,560.92 930.70 930.70
Other financial liabilities 3.95 3.95 17.93 17.93
Total 11,718.47 11,718.47 7,448.18 7,448.18
11 Disclosure as per IND AS 115 Revenue from Contract with Customers
Disaggregated revenue information:
Types of goods 2018-19 2017-18
PVC fire resistant antistatic solid woven coal conveyor belting 7,051.21 3,390.53
Trading Goods 315.21 817.97
Wind Energy 298.98 239.51
Others 112.10 695.38
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,771.50 5,143.39
Types of goods 2018-19 2017-18
Services transferred at a point in time 1,777.50 5143.39
Total revenue from contract with customers 1,771.50 5,143.39
Contract Balances 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
Trade receivables (Refer Note 11) 3145.76 2193.34
Trade payables (Refer Note 24) 1,560.92 930.70
Revenue recognised out of Contract Liabilities at beginning of reporting period - -
Revenue recognised out of Performance obligation performed during previous year - -
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38
12

OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabiltiies. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The senior management
provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All
derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist team that have the appropriate skills, experience
and supervision. It is the Company's policy that derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or
speculative purposes.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below :

(a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other risks, such as regulatory
risk and commaodity price risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and
borrowings.

To manage this, the Company enters into interest rate swaps as and when required , in which it agrees to exchange,
at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an
agreed-upon notional principal amount.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company’s foreign currency denominated borrowings. This foreign currency risk is covered by using
foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency swap contracts.

Foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2019 :
Particulars USD (in lakh)

Borrowings -

Foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2018 :
Particulars USD (in lakh)

Borrowings 3.54

Foreign currency sensitivity
1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will no material impact on Profit.

Derivative Instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

12 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

(b)

(c)

(a) Derivative contracts outstanding (Foreign Currency in lakh)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Forward contracts to sell USD 8.00 -
Forward contracts to buy USD 4.00 -

Derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts are used for hedging purposes and not as
trading or speculative instruments.

(b) Unhedged foreign currency exposure (Foreign Currency in lakh)

Nature Currency As at As at

March 31,2019 | March 31, 2018
Amount receivable on account of sale of goods, loans and usD 12.77 12.41
advances, interest, etc. SGD 6.12 5 B4
CDN 6.16 6.02
AUD 7.95 6.14
usp 5.12 2.51
Amount payable on account of purchase of goods and services, GBP 0.04 013

loans and advances, interest, etc. : -
CDN 0.69 1.36

Capital Management
(i) Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share-holders of the Company. The Company’s objective when
managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
to shareholders and other stake holders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of Capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in the financial condition and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders (buy back its shares) or issue new shares.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. The Company has complied with these covenants.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March
31st, 2019 and March 31st, 2018.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss.

The impairment for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet
date.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the Company continues to
attempt to recover the receivables. Where recoveries are made, these are recoginsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
12 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed based on Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 3 to 60 days.

An impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note No. 11.

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross) has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:

Particulars (% in lakh)
As at March 31, 2019 :
Upto 6 months 2,597.88
6 to 12 months 386.78
More than 12 months 161.10
3,145.76
Particulars (% in lakh)
As at March 31, 2018 :
Upto 6 months 1,934.05
6 to 12 months 101.98
More than 12 months 157.31
2,193.34

(i) Balances with banks

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of surplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 is the carrying amounts as stated in Note No. 12 and 13.

(d) Liquidity risk

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash
credit facilities and short term loans.
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Notes Forming Part of the Financial Statements asat March 31, 2019

38  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

12 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payment :
(% in lakh)
SI. | Particulars Less than 1year | 1to 5 years >5 years Total
No.
A. |As at March 31, 2019
(i) |Borrowings 10,153.60 - - 10,153.60
(ii) | Other financial liabilities 3.95 - - 3.95
(iii) | Trade payables 1,560.92 - - 1,560.92
Total 11,718.47 - - 11,718.47
B. |As at March 31, 2018
(i) |Borrowings 6,499.30 0.25 - 6,499.55
(ii) | Other financial liabilities 17.93 - - 17.93
(iii) | Trade payables 930.70 - - 930.70
Total 7,447.93 0.25 - 7,448.18

13 Previous Years Figures

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification
/ disclosure. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial
statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

. M.P.Jhunjhunwala R. K. Dabriwala
CA. Ajay Agrawal Director Managing Director
Partner DIN No. 00567070 DIN No. 00086658
Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata Neha Khandelwal A.K. Gulgulia
Date: May 30, 2019 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members of INTERNATIONAL CONVEYORS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of International Conveyors Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “the Holding Company”) and its Subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state
of affairs of the Group as at 31stMarch, 2019, the consolidated loss, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes
in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of his reports referred to
in Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of | Qur Procedure:

Investments and other related balances
We have verified these investments with reference to the provisions

Investments include investments made by the Company in various | of Ind AS as also internal policies and procedure of the Company as

quoted and unquoted equity shares and preference shares. follows:

These investments constitute 64.07% of the Company’s total assets. a.  carried out evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness
The valuation of each category of the aforesaid securities is to be done of the internal controls and performed substantive audit
as per the provisions of Ind AS which involves collection of data/ procedures.

information from various sources such as Demat statement, financial |h,  Assessed and evaluated the process adopted for collection of
statements of unlisted companies etc. Considering the complexities information from various sources for determining fair value of
and extent of judgement involved in the valuation, this has been these investments.

determined as Key Audit Matter.
y c.  Verified compliance with the presentation and disclosure

Refer Note 5 to the Consolidated financial statements. requirements as per Ind AS and the Act. This test was conducted
for the entire population.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (contd)

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the Group ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (contd)

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company and its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contraols.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of his reports, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditor in terms of his reports referred to in Other Matter paragraph below. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of three subsidiaries (including one step down subsidiary), whose
financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 2,756.38 lacs as at 31st March, 2019, total revenues of Rs. 2,880
lacs total net loss after tax of Rs. 21.37 Lakh and total comprehensive loss of Rs. 11.36 Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2019 as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report
has been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that :

i.  Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (contd)

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the report of the other auditors.

The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company,
none of the Directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a Director in terms
of section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such contrals, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A” which is based on the Auditor’s reports of the Holding company
and its subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies, for reasons stated therein.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position
of the Group— Refer Note No. 33.1 to the consolidated financial statements.

b.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during the
year ended 31st March, 2019.

c.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the investor education and protection
fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31st March, 2019.There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the investor education and protection fund by the subsidiary company during the year ended 31st March,
2019.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's ICAl Registration No.:302082E

(CA. Ajay Agrawal)

Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 17643
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 31 March 2019, we
have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of International Conveyors Limited (“the Holding Company”) and
its subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of his report
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company;

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report (contd.)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company have in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March,2019, based on the internal control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting in so far as it relates to the subsidiary company, is based on the corresponding report of the auditors of such
company.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s ICAl Registration No.:302082E

(CA. Ajay Agrawal)

Place of Signature : Kolkata Partner
Date : May 30, 2019 Membership No: 17643
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
I.  ASSETS
(1) Non - current assets
(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3 1,561.18 1,767.03
(b) Capital work in progress 3 119.70 119.70
(c)  Goodwill on consolidation 101.14 101.14
(d) Otherintangible assets 4 1.75 6.75
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investment 5 17,045.50 14,332.53
(i) Loans 6(i) 33.58 31.16
(iii) Other financial assets (i) 535.23 440.47
(f)  Non - current tax assets (net) 8 145.20 108.25
(g) Other non - current assets 9(i) 1,310.25 0.25
(2) Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,115.09 1,303.75
(b) Financial assets
(i)  Trade and other receivables 1 2,582.26 2,178.45
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 130.38 220.41
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 24.62 25.60
(iv) Loans 6(ii) 1,366.37 1,226.02
(v)  Other financial assets (i) 88.85 111.17
(c) Other current assets 9(ii) 442.27 1,009.68
Total Assets 26,603.37 22,982.36
1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 14 675.00 675.00
(b)  Other equity 15 13,993.73 14,279.96
Liabilities
(1) Non- current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 16(i) - 0.25
(b) Provisions 17(i) 25.52 22.64
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 367.84 152.02
(d) Other non - current liabilties 19(i) 15.39 1.35
(2) Current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 16(ii) 10,178.72 6,499.30
(ii) Trade payables 20 1,202.13 1,212.30
(iii) Other financial liabilities 21 13.17 18.12
(b) Other current liabilities 19(ii) 58.37 48.03
(c)  Provisions 17(ii) 73.50 73.39
Total Equity and Liabilities 26,603.37 22,982.36

The accompanying notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For G. P. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M.P.Jhunjhunwala R. K. Dabriwala
Director Managing Director
DIN No. 00567070 DIN No. 00086658
Neha Khandelwal A.K. Gulgulia
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Pl'Oﬁt and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)
. Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars No. | March31,2019 | March31,2018
I Revenue from operations 22 8,556.40 5,922.17
Il Other income 23 867.10 771.33
Ill.  Total income (I+11) 9,423.50 6,699.50
V. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 24 4211.21 2,135.67
Purchases of stock-in-trade 25 1,023.25 647.49
Changes in inventaries of finished goods, work-in-progress and 26 244.30 74.25
stock-in-trade
Excise duty = 298.25
Employee benefits expense 21 1,155.07 1,022.00
Finance costs 28 1,034.71 664.39
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 210.03 251.33
Other Expenses 30 1,949.58 1,400.43
Total expenses (IV) 9,828.15 7,093.81
V. Profit/(Loss) before tax (111) - (IV) (404.65) (394.31)
VI.  Tax expense: 31
Current tax 1.00 24.29
Deferred tax 159.98 158.02
VII.  Profit/(Loss) after tax (V-VI) (571.63) (576.62)
VIII.  Share of profit / (loss) of associate - (166.92)
IX.  Profit/(Loss) after share of profit/(loss) of associate (VII+VIII) (571.63) (743.54)
X.  Other comprehensive income 32
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 15.77 3,276.78
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 55.83 (339.67)
Other Comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax (40.06) 3,616.39
XI.  Total Comprehensive Income/ (Expense) for the year (VII+VIII) (611.69) 2.872.85
XIl.  Profit / (loss) for the year
Attributable to :
Owners of the parent (571.63) (743.54)
Non-controlling interests NA NA
XIll. Total comprehensive income for the year
Attributable to :
Owners of the parent (611.69) 2,872.85
Non-controlling interests NA NA
XIV. Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Re. 1/-)
Basic (0.85) 1.10)
Diluted (0.85) (1.10)

The accompanying notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For G. P. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. - 302082E

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00567070

Neha Khandelwal
Company Secretary

R. K. Dabriwala
Managing Director
DIN No. 00086658

A. K. Gulgulia
Chief Financial Officer




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax (404.65) (394.31)
Adjustments for

Depreciation 210.03 251.33
Provision for expected credit losses 38.25

Finance costs 1,034.71 664.39
Interest Income (730.61) (607.97)
Dividend Income (19.43) (19.59)
Profit on sale of investment (11.47)

Sundry balances written back (2.95) (0.17)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 5.80 0.03
Operating profit before working capital changes 119.74 (106.29)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payable (13.12) 594.56
Increase / (Decrease) in Non-current and current provisions 2.99 2.31
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables (403.81) (1,351.65)
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories 188.66 322.83
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 24.38 (24.60)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabilities 1.39 0.15
(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets 10.56 11.57
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets 567.41 (763.15)
Cash generated from operations 498.20 (1,314.27)
Direct Taxes (paid)/refund received (29.95) (41.18)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities 468.25 (1,355.45)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property,plant and equipment and intangible assets (1,329.18) (15.17)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 18.59 (0.00)
Proceeds / (investment) in fixed deposits / deposits (78.24) (84.05)
(Increase) / decrease in investments (2,380.49) (1,381.54)
Loan( given) /received back (142.17) 460.86
Interest Received 730.61 594.86
Dividend Received 19.43 19.59
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (3,162.05) (405.39)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Contd.)

(% in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of Long Term Borrowings (0.25) (9.48)
Proceeds of Short Term Borrowings (net) 3,679.42 2,4817.02
Dividend and Dividend distribution tax (40.69) (41.03)
Interest Paid (1,034.71) (664.69)
Net cash flow from financing activities 2,603.77 1,771.82
Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (90.03) 10.98
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 220.41 209.43
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 130.38 220.41
Notes :

1)  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consists of : Marclll:s;,t 2019 Marc‘I:531,t2018
Cash on hand 67.13 5.70
Others - Silver coins 0.49 -
Balance with banks

On current accounts 62.76 214.1
Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement 130.38 220.41
(Refer note 12)

2)  The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the * Indirect Method " as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

(IND AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows.

3) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

4)  Figure in brackets represent cash outflow from respective activities.

The accompanying notes 1to 33 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For G. P. Agrawal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. - 302082E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CA. Ajay Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: May 30, 2019

R. K. Dabriwala
Managing Director
DIN No. 00086658

M.P.Jhunjhunwala
Director
DIN No. 00567070

Neha Khandelwal
Company Secretary

A. K. Gulgulia
Chief Financial Officer

Annual Report 2018-19 107




132110 [e1aueuld Jary) f1eja133s Auedwo) 6102 ‘0€ e :318Q

elnging -y 'y |em[apueyy eyapy e1e)|0Y :2Injeus|s Jo ade|d

E¥9LL "ON diysiaqua

85998000 ON NId 0L0£9S00 "ON NId Jauped

1033211 8uideuey 10322110 [emesy Kely "y
ejemugeq ) “y ejemunyfunyrdiy

328020€ - 'ON UoljesIsI3ay swilg

SJUBIUNGIIY paI3liey)

51013311 JO pJeOg 3y1 JO J|EY3g U0 pue 104 '0) g [emesy g "9 JoJ

"Payaelie alep UaAa jo podal Jno Jad sy

"SJU3WI]LIS [BI2UBUL PAlepPI|oSuU0d 3y} jo ed [eidajul ue ale £€ 0} | sajou Buikuedwodde ay|

ELE66'EL - EL'E66'EL §5°8¢¢ 21898 (¥t°2€6°2) | 055152 85%0S'S |eb'6€ 6102 'LE Yd1e| 1e dduejeg

(¥6°9) - (¥6°9) - - (¥6°9) - - - Xe] UoIINgIISIp PUapIAIQ

(sLeg) - (Sree) - - (sree) |- - - pred puapialg

Jeak ayy 1o} (ssoj)

0L'92¢ - 60°92¢ 51'99¢ (90°0v) - - - - /3wi0du} 3ansuaya1dwiod 13y10

(€9°LLS) - (€9°1L5) - (eg18) |- - - 1eak ayy 10} (5507)/31J01d
96'6.2'hL - 96°'6L2'FL (09°LEL) 81°8/9'8 (2L'02€°2) | 0§°S15'2 85'¥0S'S |2h6E 8102 'LE Ydie| 1e aduejeg m
(£8'9) - (£89) - - (1879) - - - XeJ UONNGUISIp PUSpIAg &
(SL°€E) (SL€€) - - (sreg) |- - - pied puspiAlg %
Jeaf ayy 1oy (ssol) nm
8L'6EE'E - 8L'6EEE (80°€8?) 6EQL9'E L¥'9 - - - /3wodul anisuayaidwod ;BYID g
(vSevl) - (vSevl) - - WwSev) |- - = teak 2l Joj [ss0T)Agold £
8L0Z ‘LE Yyd:e|y papud seak
ays Suunp fynba ur saduey) o

YEWLLL - vEVLLL 8¥'Syl 6.°190'S (ev'ebS'l) 0651572 85¥0S'S |2¥'6E L102 ‘L |11dy 3e aduejeg

awodul
anIasal anisuayaidwod
uolje[sueiy J13y1o ysnoiyy anIasay
s1sa1aqul quased fauaund sjuawinisul sSuluiea | wniwald | aAIas3Y | aAIAsIY
Suigjonuoa | ay Jo siaumo ugiaiog funb3 pautejay | fiundas | |esauag |ende)

|elol -uop 0} 3|qeInquily | awodu| aAisuayaidwo) J1aylg snjdins pue anIasay slejnailed
funb3zsayig (q)

00°6.9 - 00°5.9 6102 'LE Y2ue|y papua seak ay} Jo4

00°S.9 - 00°5.9 8102 'LE Yauely papua seak ayy Jo4
Jeaf ayy jo J1eaf ayy unnp jepded Jeaf ayy jo

pua ay3 je adjuejeg aleys fyinba ui saguey) Suluuidaq ayj je ajuejeg siejnaijied

(yrefur 2) |ende) aieys fynb3z  (e)

6102 'L y21ew papua reaf a1y finba ul sagueyd jo Juawajels pajepijosuo)




[ ]
[’1 International Conveyors Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

1.

2.2

2.3

Corporate Information

International Conveyors Limited (“ICL" or “the Group”) is a public limited incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered
office of the Company is situated at Falta SEZ, Sector-I1, near Pump House No. 3 Village & Mouza- Akalmegh, Akalmegh-743504.

The Company’s shares are listed on The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.
Its business consists of :

(a) Manufacturing and trading of Conveyor Belting,

(b) Trading of Ply Conveyor Belting, Steel Cord Conveyor Belting and fitting and accessories, and

(c) Generation and Sale of Power.

International Conveyors Limited together with its subsidiaries is hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group'.

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2019 was approved for issue by the Board of Directors of
the Group on May 30, 2019 and is subjected to the adoption by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Significant accounting policies

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the
relevant presentation requirements of the Act.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS under the historical cost basis except for the
following :

i)  Certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) - measured at fair value, and

ii)  Defined benefits plan — plan assets measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration in exchange for goods and services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle and other

criteria set out in Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements including notes thereon are presented in Indian Rupees (“Rupees” or “Rs.”), which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements including notes thereon have been
rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the requirement of Schedule 111 to the Act, unless stated otherwise.

Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) includes the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries together
with the share of the total comprehensive income of associate.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Associate is an entity over which the Group exercise significant influence but
does not control.

Control, significant influence is assessed annually with reference to the voting power (usually arising from equity shareholdings
and potential voting rights) and other rights (usually contractual) enjoyed by the Group in its capacity as an investor that
provides it the power and consequential ability to direct the investee’s activities and significantly affect the Group’s returns
from its investment. Such assessment requires the exercise of judgement and is disclosed by way of a note to the Financial
Statements. The Group is considered not to be in control of entities where it is unclear as to whether it enjoys such power over
the investee.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are aggregated and consolidated, line by line, from the date control
is acquired by any Group entity to the date it ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

attributed to the Group as owners and to the non-controlling interests. The Group presents the non-controlling interests in
the Balance Sheet within equity, separately from the equity of the Group as owners. The excess of the Group's investment in a
subsidiary over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit
is considered as a capital reserve in the CFS. On disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss, if any, to the extent
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not
reversed. For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUs to which it relates,
which is not larger than an operating segment, and is monitored for internal management purposes.

An investment in an associate is initially recognized at cost on the date of the investment, and inclusive of any goodwill/
capital reserve embedded in the cost, in the Balance Sheet. The proportionate share of the Group in the net profits / losses
as also in the other comprehensive income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the carrying value of the
investment is adjusted by a like amount (referred as ‘equity method'). All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (PPE), depreciation and amortization
a) Transition to Ind AS

The Group has elected to continue with carrying value of all Property, plant and equipment under the previous GAAP as
deemed cost as at the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016.

Under the previous GAAP, Property, plant and equipment were stated at their original cost (net of accumulated
depreciation and impairment).

b)  All Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition with subsequent improvements thereto. Cost of
acquisition includes taxes, duties, inward freight and installation expenses.

Expenditure incurred on improvements/ modifications of fixed assets that increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance, e.g., increase in capacity / efficiency, are capitalized.

c) Depreciation is provided on written down value method as per Schedule |1 of the Companies Act, 2013 based on the
useful life of the assets. In case of certain items of Plant and Equipments where useful life ranging from 10 to 30 years
has been considered based on technical assessment, which is different from the useful life prescribed under Schedule
Il of the Companies Act, 2013. However assets costing ¥ 5,000/- or less are depreciated fully in the year of addition.
Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease.

Additions on account of improvements/ modifications, which becomes an integral part of the existing asset and either do
not have separate identity and/or are not capable of being used after the existing asset is disposed off, are depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the assets (improved /modified) they are attached with.

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization. Computer software packages are
amortized over a period of five year on straight line basis.
2.5  Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition based on its nature and characteristics.

(a) Financial assets
(i)  Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. The financial
assets include equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, loans and advances, cash and bank balances
and derivative financial instruments.
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Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following categories:
> At amortised cost,
> At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
> At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

»  Theasset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

> Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Equity investments

All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except in case of investment in
associate (consolidated as per equity method).

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in profit or loss. The Group may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair
value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

When the fair value has been determined based on level 3 inputs, the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price is deferred and after initial recognition deferred difference is recognised as
gain or loss to the extent it arises from change in input to valuation technique.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on
sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

(iii) De-recognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

(b) Financial liabilities
(i)  Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabilities classified at
amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, derivative
financial instruments, etc.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, Financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
> Financial liabilities at amortised cost, and
> Derivative instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A derivative financial instrument, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps are used to hedge foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks respectively and includes options. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value.

Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

When the fair value has been determined based on level 3 inputs, the difference between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price is deferred and after initial recognition deferred difference is recognised as gain or
loss to the extent it arises from change in input to valuation technique.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities including derivative instruments are offset and the net amount is reported in
the Balance sheet, if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liahilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valuation of financial
instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement”.

For some assets and liabilities, observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other
assets and liabilities, observable market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the
objective of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to
sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that
holds the asset or owes the liability).

Three widely used valuation techniques specified in the said Ind AS are the market approach, the cost approach and the
income approach which have been dealt with separately in the said Ind AS.

Each of the valuation techniques stated as above proceeds on different fundamental assumptions, which have greater or
lesser relevance, and at times there is no relevance of a particular methodology to a given situation. Thus, the methods
to be adopted for a particular purpose must be judiciously chosen. The application of any particular method of valuation
depends on the Group being evaluated, the nature of industry in which it operates, the Group’s intrinsic strengths and
the purpose for which the valuation is made.

In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each balance sheet date.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by
valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Share capital

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new equity shares are recognized as a deduction
from equity, net of any tax effects.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Inventories

a) Inventories are valued at lower of the cost and net realizable value. The cost in respect of raw materials and stores
and spares is determined on FIFO basis and in respect of finished goods and stock in process is determined on average
basis. Cost of raw materials and stores and spares include the taxes and duties other than those recoverable from taxing
authorities and expenses incidental to the procurement of the same. Cost in case of stock-in-process and finished goods
represent prime cost and appropriate portion of overheads.

b)  Custom duty on bonded materials and excise duty on finished goods at factory are accounted for and included in cost of
inventory.

Impairments of Assets
(a) Non- financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for impairment. In case
events and circumstances indicate any impairment, recoverable amounts of fixed assets is determined. An impairment
loss is recognized, whenever the carrying amount of assets belonging to the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) exceeds
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of assets net selling price or its value in use. In assessing the
value in use, the estimated future cash flows from the use of assets are discounted to their present value as appropriate.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been change in the recoverable amount and such loss either no longer exists
or has decreased. Impairment loss/reversal thereof is adjusted to the carrying value of the respective assets, which in
case of CGU, are allocated to its assets on a prorate basis.

(b) Financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not
fair valued through profit or loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income or expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head “Other expenses” in the profit or loss. ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Balance sheet. The allowance
reduces the net carrying amount.

Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.
Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions in Foreign Currencies are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing as on the date of the transaction. Foreign
Currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated using closing rates whereas non monetary assets are
translated at the rate on the date of transaction. The loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange differences on settlement
of the foreign currency transaction during the year are recognized as revenue or expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits would flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured, regardless of when the revenue proceeds is received from customers.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received/receivable taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the Government.

With effect from 1st April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the
cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts there were not completed as of 1st April, 2018. Accordingly, the
comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to customers in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

The Company recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the
payment to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services by applying the following steps:

Step -1- Identify the contract with a customer;
Step -2- Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
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2.10

2.1

2.12

2.13

2.14

Step -3- Determine the transaction price;

Step -4- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract;

Step -5- Recognize the revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
The specific recognition criteria for revenue recognition are as follows:

Revenue from Operations:

a)  Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point of dispatch to the customers. Gross sales include excise duty, Goods
and Service Tax (GST) and rebate, discounts, claims, returns, central sales tax (CST) / value added tax (VAT) etc., are
excluded there from.

b) Sale of Electricity
Sale of Electricity is accounted for on delivery of Electricity to grid in terms of agreement with the Electricity Board.
c¢) Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate
(EIR). Interest income is included in “Other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d) Insurance and other claims are accounted for as and when admitted or realized.
e) Dividend is recognized when the right to receive is established.

f)  All other income are accounted for on accrual basis.

Expenses

All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

Expenses under primary heads such as salary, wages, consumption of stores etc., are being shown under respective heads and
have not been functionally reclassified.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss
of the year in which the related service is rendered.

The Group has Defined Contribution Plan for its employees retirement benefits comprising of Provident Fund and Pension
Fund. The Group makes regular contribution to Provident Fund, which are fully funded and administered by the Government.
Contributions are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

The Group has Defined Benefit Plan comprising of Gratuity and Leave Encashment schemes. The Group contributes to the
Gratuity Fund under the Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme with Life Insurance Corporation (LIC) for future payment
of gratuity liability to its employees. Consequent to the adoption of Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19) on “Employee
Benefits”, the liahility for the Gratuity and Leave Encashment as at the year end has been determined on the basis of an
independent actuarial valuation in accordance with the method stated in Ind AS 19 Revised and such liability has been
adjusted/ provided in these financial statements.

The actuarial gain and losses comprise experience judgment and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year
in which they arise.

Grants

Government Grants are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant would be received and the
Group would comply with all the conditions attached with them.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Cost incurred in relation to acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment are allocated to the
property, plant and equipment. Other borrowing costs are recognized as finance cost in the year in which they are incurred.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the
extent it relates to items directly recognized in Equity or in OCI.
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2.15

2.16

2.17

a)

b)

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and applicable for the period.

Current tax items in correlation to the underlying transaction relating to OCI and Equity are recognized in OCI and in
Equity respectively.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor
taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws to the extent it is likely
to give future economic benefits in the form of availability to set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliabily and it is probable that
the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present obligation as
a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed in the financial statement. Contingent Liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes.

Earnings per share

()
(b)

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares
which could be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined as at the end of each period presented. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for
each period presented.

Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (CODM).
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2.18

2.19

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Managing Director who makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the Financial Statements of the Group as a whole. In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been
followed for segment reporting:

a)  Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with/allocable to the segment including inter
segment transfers.

Inter segment transfers are accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to between the segments which is at
cost in case of transfer of Group's intermediate and final products and estimated realisable value in case of by-products.

b)  Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment. Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Group as a whole and are not
allocable to segments on direct and/or on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cheques on hand, balance with banks on current
accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less and which carry
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and cash equivalents consist of Cash and cash equivalents, as defined above
and net of outstanding book overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions
of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Group are segregated.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that management of the Group makes estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond control of the management.

1. Control:

The Group assessed whether or not it has control on its investees based on whether, as an investor, it has the power/
rights and consequently the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of its investees unilaterally. In making this
judgement, the Group considered the absolute size of its holding, the relative size of and dispersion of other shareholders,
and whether any contractual arrangements exist between the Company (and its subsidiaries) and other shareholders of
the investees. Based on this, and in accordance with its Accounting Policy, the Group has determined that the entities
listed in the notes to the financial statements are the only entities over which Group has contral.

2. Significant influence:

The Group assessed whether or not it has significant influence on its investees based on its practical ability to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, though it is not in control or in joint control
of these policies. Based on such assessment, the Group determined that the entities listed in the notes to the financial
statements are the only entities over which the Group has significant influence, and accordingly associates.

3. Defined Benefit Plan:

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuations involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
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rates and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

4.  Recent Accounting Pronouncements :
a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the year ended 31st March,
2019:

»  Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

> Appendix B, foreign currency transactions and advance consideration to Ind AS 21 — The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates.

> Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes.

The application of Ind AS 115 and other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognized in prior periods as well as current period and are not expected to significantly affect the future periods.

b) Standards Issued but not yet Effective:
i) Ind AS 116

Ind AS 116 is effective for period beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. It will replace previous lease standard
Ind AS 17.

Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to accounting for finance leases under
Ind AS 17.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize a 'right-of-use asset' and a 'lease liability' for almost all leasing
arrangements. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today's accounting under
Ind AS 17. The lessor still has to classify leases as either finance or operating.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results
of operation.

ii)  Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to Ind AS 12

Appendix C has been added to Ind AS 12 which seeks to bring clarity to the accounting for uncertainties on
income tax treatment that are yet to be accepted by tax authorities and to reflect in the measurement of
current and deferred taxes.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results
of operation.

iii)  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation, Amendments to Ind AS 109

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order
to allow measurement at amortized cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other
comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

iv)  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement- Amendments to Ind AS 19

On 30th March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

»  touse updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

»  torecognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in
a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The
Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (% in lakh)
Particulars Freehold | Leashold | Buildings | Plantand | Wind | CElectrical Office | Furniture Total Capital
land land Equipment | Mill | Installation | equipment and | Vehicles Work-in-
Fixtures progress
Gross Block
Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2018 8.50 0.45 399.73| 131890 | 465.66 18.69 12.95 13.92| 5258 2291.38 119.70
Additions during the year - - - - - - 10.33 0.36 8.49 19.18 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 1.37 -| 3834 39.71 -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 8.50 0.45 399.73| 1,318.90 | 465.66 18.69 21.91 14.28 | 2273 | 2,270.85 119.70
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2018 0.31 0.02 73.03 332.94| 75.35 8.89 5.36 6.12| 17.94| 519.96 -
Depreciation for the year 0.15 0.01 31.02 12747 3235 2.50 3.90 1.61 6.02| 205.03 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - - -| 1532 15.32 -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 0.46 0.03 104.05 460.41| 107.70 1.39 9.26 113 8.64 709.67 -
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 8.04 0.42| 295.68 858.49 | 357.96 71.30 12.65 6.55| 14.09| 156118 119.70
Gross Block
Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2017 8.50 0.45 399.73| 1273.36| 465.66 18.69 12.28 13.32| 5258| 224457| 120.94
Additions during the year - - - 45.53 - - 1.05 0.60 - 41.18 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 0.38 - - 0.38 1.24
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 8.50 0.45 399.73 1,318.90 | 465.66 18.69 12.95 13.92 52.58 | 2,291.37 119.70
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2017 0.17 0.01 38.51 171.05| 39.58 5.20 3.85 385 10.25 218.41 -
Depreciation for the year 0.14 0.01 34.52 155.89 35.771 3.69 2.56 225 M.39| 246.22 -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year - - - - - - 0.35 - - 0.35 -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 0.31 0.02 73.03 332.94| 7535 8.89 6.06 6.10| 21.64| 524.34 -
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 8.19 0.43 326.70 985.95 | 390.31 9.80 6.89 7.82| 30.94| 1767.03 119.70

*Refer Note 16 nature of securities of borrowings for the charge created on the aforesaid property, plant and equipments.

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Computer Software
Gross Block

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2018 16.79
Additions during the year -
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 16.79
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at April 1, 2018 10.04
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 5.00
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 15.04
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2019 1.75
Gross Block

Gross Carrying Amount as at April 1, 2017 14.05
Additions during the year 2.74
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Gross Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 16.79
Accumulated depreciation/amortisation as at April 1, 2017 493
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 51
Adjustments/ deductions during the year -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2018 10.04
Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2018 6.75
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5. INVESTMENTS (% in lakh)
Face As at As at
Particulars Valve March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
() |No.ofShares| Value |No.of Shares| Value
(i) Equity Instruments
Fully paid up :
Associate (At cost)
Unquoted
Pure Coke Limited
Cost of acquisition 10 70,84,860 422.03| 70,84,860 693.04
Add: Share of profit / (loss) of assaciates = = - (166.92)
70,84,860 422.03| 70,84,860 526.12
Others (at fair value through other comprehensive income)
Quoted :
Dunlop India Limited 10 25 0.00 25 0.00
Radaan Media Works (1) Limited 2 63,190 1.80 63,190 1.30
Tide Water Qil (India) Limited 5 445 22.81 445 21.22
Elpro International Limited 1 2,3455160| 10,871.47| 2,01,89,160 8,802.47
R.C.A.Limited* 5 = = 21,096 1.35
2,35,18,820| 10,896.08 | 2,02,79,916 8,832.34
Unquoted
| G E (India) Private Limited 1 29,750 128.50 29,750 142.52
Dabri Properties and Trading Company Limited 10 60 0.02 60 0.02
R.C.A Limited* 21,096 29.19 - -
56,906 157.1 29,810 142.54
i) Preference shares :
Fully paid up :
Value at amortised cost
Quoted
12% Non-convertible preference shares
Elpro International Limited* 10 15,00,000 5314.68| 15,00,000 4,831.53
3% Non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares
Leaf Fashions Private Limited 10 4,50,000 50.00 -
6% Non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares
Oasis Fashion World Private Limited 10 8,00,000 80.00 -
Ring Investrade Private Limited 10 12,50,000 125.00 - -
40,00,000 5,569.68 | 15,00,000 4,831.53
17,045.50 14,332.53
Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments 10,896.08 8,832.34
Aggregate market value of Quoted Investments 10,896.08 8,832.34
Aggregate amount of Unguoted Investments 5,721.39 4,974.07

Note: * Share of R.C.A. Limited have become unlisted from Stock Exchange during the year.
* These preference shares will have the maximum term of 15 years from the date of allotment. However, these shares can be redeemed earlier at the
option of the Company. The dividend on these preference shares will be cumulative and will be receivable at the rate of 12% p.a.
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(% in lakh)
6. LOANS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(i) Non-current
Security deposit 33.58 31.16
33.58 31.16
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(ii) Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances
Related parties (Refer Note No. 33(9)) 740.35 614.70
Other body corporates 536.18 485.47
Security deposits 89.84 105.12
Others - 20.73
1,366.37 1,226.02
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Deposits to body corporate 52.45 14.70
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (52.45) (14.70)
1,366.37 1,226.02
7. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
() Non-current
(Fg;er?kddeeppooss:?tzv:/t:li?i:rlj(fe than 12 months maturity) Rl 35688
Others 99.67 83.59
535.23 440.47
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(i) Current
Interest Accrued and not due on
Fixed deposits with banks 17.59 31.75
Others 2.40 -
Others
Insurance Claim Receivable = 66.37
CMPDI Fees 9.02 3.59
Receivable on account of Derivative Contract 32.84 9.46
Others 21.00 -
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(% in lakh)
|| 88.85 .17
8. NON-CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Tax deducted at source and Advance tax 2,364.78 2,449.71
Less: Provision for taxation (2,220.84) (2,342.78)
143.94 106.99
Advance fringe benefit tax 13.50 13.50
Less: Provision for taxation (12.24) (12.24)
1.26 1.26
145.20 108.25
9. OTHER (Unsecured, considered good)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(i)  Non-current
Capital advances 1,310.00 -
Advances other than Capital advances
With statutory authorities 0.25 0.25
1,310.25 0.25
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(ii) Current
Advances other than Capital advances
Advances to suppliers and others 32.97 15.09
Cenvat, GST and other Taxes/ Duties 311.72 279.04
Others* 97.58 715.55
442.27 1,009.68
* Include Incentive receivable, etc.
10. INVENTORIES (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Raw Materials 181.84 192.58
Raw Materials In Transit 69.88 11.65
Work-In-Process 293.70 497.65
Finished Goods 189.01 550.08
Finished Goods In Transit 293.01 2.34
Stock In Trade 62.60 32.55
Stores And Spares 23.99 15.73
Loose Tools 1.06 1.17
1,115.09 1,303.75
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11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(% in lakh)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Unsecured, considered good 547.88 135.29
Unsecured, considered doubtful 12.14 12.14
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (12.14) (12.14)
547.88 135.29

Other receivables

Unsecured, considered good 2,034.38 2,043.16
2,582.26 2,178.45

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Balance with scheduled banks :

In Current Accounts 62.76 2147
Cash on hand 67.13 5.70
Others — Silver cains 0.49 -

130.38 220.41

13. BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Earmarked balances

In Unpaid Dividend Account 370 4.24

Fixed deposits with banks
Original maturity period more than 3 months up to 12 months 20.92 21.36
24.62 25.60
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14. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% in lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares shares
(a) Authorised
Equity shares of par value % 1/- each 9,80,00,000 980.00| 9,80,00,000 980.00
Preference shares of par value ¥ 100/- each 20,000 20.00 20,000 20.00
1,000.00 1,000.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of par value % 1/- each 6,75,00,000 675.00 | 6,75,00,000 675.00
675.00 675.00
(c) Forfeited shares
Equity shares of par value % 1/- each* 250 0.00 250 0.00
0.00 0.00

* Nil due to rounding off figures.

(d)  Reconciliation of number and amount of equity shares outstanding:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

No. of No. of
shares held Amount shares held Amount
At the beginning of the year 6,75,00,000 675.00| 6,75,00,000 675.00
At the end of the year 6,75,00,000 675.00 | 6,75,00,000 675.00

(e)  Out of the above issued shares, the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 1/- each. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Each
holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount in proportion of their shareholding.

(f)  Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company :

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Name of the shareholder No. of % of No. of % of
shares held | holding | shares held | holding

Surbhit Dabriwala 88,24,859 1307% |  88,24,859 13.07%
Yamini Dabriwala 64,09.900 9.50% |  64,09,900 9.50%
Elara India Opportunities Fund Limited 32,38,962 4.80% 50,15997 143%
Cresta Fund Limited 50,00,000 141% | 50,00,000 14%
Eriska Investment Fund Limited 16,89,368 2.50%|  61,80,000 9.16%
Lotus Global Investments Limited 2199400 4.15% 4299400 6.37%
| G E (India) Private Limited 88,34710 1309% | 5462534 8.09%
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(% in lakh)
15. OTHEREQUITY
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(a) Capital reserves
Balances as per last account 39.42 39.42
(b) General reserve
Balance as per last account 5,504.58 5,504.58
Less : Transfer to retained earnings = -
Closing balance 5,504.58 5,504.58
(c) Securities Premium
Balances as per last account 2,515.50 2,515.50
(d) Retained earnings
Balance as per last account (2320.12) (1,542.43)
Add: Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (571.63) (743.54)
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year = 6.47
Less : Appropriations:
Dividend (33.75) (33.75)
Tax on dividend (6.94) (6.87)
Closing balance (2932.44) (2,320.12)
(e) Other comprehensive income
Balance as per last account 8,540.58 5,207.27
Add : Other comprehensive income for the year (40.06) 3,616.39
Foreign Currency Transalation Reserve 366.15 (283.08)
Closing balance 8,866.67 8,540.58
Other Equity (atbtctdte) 13,993.73 14,279.96
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(% in lakh)
16. BORROWINGS
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
() Non-current
Others
Unsecured
Sales tax deferment loan = 0.25
- 0.25

() Nature of securities

(i) Vehicle finance loan from banks and others are secured by hypothecation of vehicles acquired against the said loan.

(b) Terms of repayment

Name of the banks/entities Rate of interest |  Amount outstanding as at March Amount outstanding as at March
(RoI) 31,2019 31,2018
Current Non current Current Non current
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. 11.71% ° 2.21 -
Sales tax deferrement loan # Interest free 0.25 2.85 0.25
Total 0.25 5.12 0.25
#Period of maturity w.r.t the balance sheet date as at March 31, 2019 - Sales tax deferrement loan - 1 years.
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(ii) Current
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
From banks
Working capital facilities from bank 1,632.17 1,553.44
Others - 229.63
Unsecured
From other than banks 8,546.55 4716.23
10,178.72 6,499.30

Nature of securities :

Working Capital facility from Bank are secured by hypothecation of Company's entire stock, book debts and other current assets both present and future and
also secured by first charge on fixed assets of the Company including land and building (both units at Aurangabad and Falta). This is further secured by personal

guarantee by one of the directors of the Company.
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17. PROVISIONS

(% in lakh)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

(i)  Non-current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 33.6)

Unavailed Leave 17.02 14.98
Provision for decommissioning of assets 8.50 1.66
25.52 22.64
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
(i) Current
Prcgri:lz?t;or employee benefits (Refer Note No. 33.6) 59.74 60.59
Unavailed Leave 11.92 12.80
Other 1.84 -
73.50 73.39
18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing
Balance profit or loss other compre- Balance
hensive income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 138.60 20.65 - 159.25
Investment 230.16 186.14 53.80 470.1
368.76 206.79 53.80 629.36
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 21.30 5.72 (2.03) 30.99
Unabsorbed depreciation 166.25 26.81 - 193.06
Provision for doubtful debt and deposit 8.29 14.28 - 22.57
MAT credit entitlement 14.90 - - 14.90
216.74 46.81 (2.03) 261.52
Net deferred tax liability 152.02 159.98 55.83 367.84
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(% in lakh)
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars Opening Recognized in Recognized in Closing
Balance profit or loss other compre- Balance
hensive income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 16.83 121.71 - 138.60
Investment 488.56 84.10 (342.50) 230.16
505.39 205.87 (342.50) 368.76
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax
assets
Expenses allowable on payment basis 33.28 (3.09) (2.89) 21.30
Unabsorbed depreciation 114.31 51.94 - 166.25
Provision for doubtful debt and deposit 9.29 (1.00) - 8.29
MAT credit entitlement 14.90 - - 14.90
171.78 47.85 (2.89) 216.74
Net deferred tax liability 333.61 158.02 (339.61) 152.02

19. OTHER LIABILITIES

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

() Non-current

Deferred gain on changes in value of financial liabilities 0.68 1.35

Others 14.71 -
15.39 1.35

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

(i) Current

Statutory dues 58.11 48.03

Others 0.26 -
58.37 48.03

20. TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 100.23 117.56

(Refer Note No. 33(3))

Tec::;r%t:;tsszndmg dues of creditors other than micro and small 1101.90 109474
1,202.13 1,212.30
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(% in lakh)

21. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Current maturities of long term debt*
Vehicle loan = 2.21
Sales tax deferment loan 0.25 2.84
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings = 1.00
Interest accrued and due on borrowings = 7.58
Unpaid dividends* 3.70 4.24
Others 9.22 0.19

13.17 18.12

* Refer Note No. 16(i) for nature of securities and terms of repayment respectively.

* There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

22. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Sale of Products

PVC Fire Resistant Antistatic Solid Woven Coal Conveyor Belting 7,830.11 4169.30
Trading Goods 315.21 817.97
Wind Energy 298.98 239.51
Other operating revenue
Miscellaneous Sales 16.15 8.43
Sundry Balance Written Back 2.95 59.43
Duty Credit Scrip Received (IXU) 89.87 623.38
Duty Drawback 3.13 4.15
8,556.40 5,922.17
23. OTHER INCOME
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost 730.61 607.97
Dividend income 19.43 19.59
Rent 0.30 0.30
Foreign exchange gain (Net) 58.82 60.96
Profit on sale of investment carried at FVTPL 11.41 -
Doubtful deposit written back 0.61 0.17
Other receipts 45.92 88.34
867.10 771.33

128 Annual Report 2018-19



[ ]
[’1 International Conveyors Limited

Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(% in lakh)
24. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Polyester yarn 1,403.04 779.55
Spunyarn 52.65 21.67
Cotton yarn 332.41 198.07
Chemicals
(i) PVCResin 903.08 509.14
(i) Phosphate Plasticizer 837.35 491.69
(iii) Others 682.68 431.00
Others = 304.55
4,211.21 2,735.67
25. PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Ply and steel cord conveyor belting 801.83 501.55
Fittings and accessories 221.42 145.94
1,023.25 647.49
26. CHANGE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Opening Stock
Finished goods (including in transit) 552.42 754.45
Less : Excise duty = 24.81
552.42 729.64
Work-in-process 497.65 350.93
Stock in trade (including in transit ) 32.55 76.30
1,082.62 1,156.87
Less : Closing stock
Finished goods (including in transit) 482.02 552.42
Work-in-process 293.70 497.65
Stock in trade (including in transit ) 62.60 32.55
838.32 1,082.62
244.30 74.25
27. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,065.96 937.96
Contribution to provident and other funds 31.00 35.30
Staff welfare 58.11 48.74
1,155.07 1,022.00
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(% in lakh)
28. FINANCE COSTS
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest
On borrowings 984.05 623.05
Other borrowing costs 47.40 35.99
Applicable loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 3.26 5.35
1,034.71 664.39
29. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Depreciation and amortization expense

On property, plant and equipment 205.03 246.22
On other intangible assets 5.00 51
210.03 251.33
30. OTHER EXPENSES
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Consumption of stores and spare parts 15.07 11.99
Power and Fuel 316.17 163.82
Rent 28.33 100.86
Repairs-Buildings 0.33 0.03
Repairs-Machinery 43.66 33.24
Repairs-Others 91.21 48.02
Insurance Charges 21.04 21.91
Rates And Taxes 6.93 11.72
Travelling And Conveyance 90.24 96.25
Directors Fees 5.10 6.21
Auditors Remuneration 15.28 6.26
Transport, Packing And Forwarding 792.24 319.52
Commission On Sales 71.43 13.84
Legal And Professional Fees 135.24 300.87
Subscription And Donation 1.58 0.55
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 33(4)) - 2.00
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 5.80 0.03
Provision for expected credit losses 38.25 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 259.68 263.31
1,949.58 1,400.43
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31. TAX EXPENSE

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

A. Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax 1.00 -
Income Tax for earlier years = 24.29
Total current tax 1.00 24.29
Deferred tax 159.98 158.02
Total 166.98 182.31
B. Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax
On items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 2.03 2.89
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 53.80 (342.50)
Total 55.83 (339.61)
32. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of defined benefit plans 5.80 9.36
E:E;:e[lr_]c;i‘ei\s/]e ?:c?;aesuring Equity Instruments through Other 9.97 3,267.42
15.77 3,276.78
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 55.83 (339.67)
(40.06) 3,616.39
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33. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) in respect of : (% in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

() Contingent liabilities

a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt :

Income Tax matter under Appeal 32.62 32.62

Service Tax matter under Appeal 24.09 24.09

b) Guarantees:

Guarantees given by bank on behalf of the Group 451.59 862.70

(i) Capital commitment

Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not
provided for

143 -

The Group's pending litigation comprises of claim against the Group and proceeding pending tax/statutory/Government authorities. The Group
has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, and disclosed the contingent liabilities, where
applicable, in its Financial Statements. The Group does not expects the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its financial
position. Future cash outflows in respect of [a (i), (ii) & (iii)] above are dependent upon the outcome of judgments / decisions.

2. The Group has certain cancellable operating lease arrangements for office/ residential accomodation and for use of machineries with a lease
period of one to five years which can be further extended after mutual consent and agreement. The lease agreement can be terminated after
giving a notice as per the terms of the lease by either of the party. Expenditure incurred on account of operating lease rentals during the year
and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss amounts to Rs. 12.57 lakh (Previous Year Rs. 10.57 lakh).

3. Based on the information/documents available with the Company, detail as per the requirement of section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows:

3 Particulars As at As at

No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
| The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers* 100.23 117.56
[l The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers 2.00 0.58

[ll.  The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to
supplier beyond the appointed day

IV.  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
( which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without = -
adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006

4. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsobility (CSR) activities :

" Particulars As at L5
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year - 1.81
(b) Amount spent during the year in cash - 2.00
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(% in lakh)
5. Earning Per Share (EPS) :
SI. Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(a) Profit / (Loss) attributable to Shareholders (* in lakh) (571.63) (743.54)
(b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 6,75,00,000 6,75,00,000
(c) Nominal Value of Equity Share (*) 1 1
(d) Basic and Diluted EPS (') (0.85) (1.10)
6. Employee Benefits:
As per Indian Accounting Standard- 19 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosures of Employee Benefits are as follows:
a) Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan recognized as expenses for the year are as under:
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 6.15 6.13
Employer's Contribution to Pension Fund 1.47 71.88
Employer's Contribution to Employees State Insurance Scheme 2.37 1.98
b) The disclosure as per the Indian Accounting Standard 19 (AS-19) “Employee Benefits” are given below:
The Group operates post retirement benefit plans as following:
Funded: Gratuity.
Non Funded: Leave Encashment
Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuarial reports as on March 31, 2019 (% in lakh)
. Gratuity (Funded)
Particulars 201819 2017-18
A. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current Service Cost 6.18 1.23
Past Service Cost = 3.76
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset 4.33 4.8
Curtailment = -
Settlement = -
Total Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss* 10.51 15.17
B. Other comprehensive Income:
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from :
- Change in demographic assumptions (0.05) -
- Change in financial assumptions (0.52) (3.34)
- Change in experience assumptions (4.86) (4.85)
(Return)/Loss on plan assets excluding amount included in Interest Income (0.37) (1.18)
Components of defined costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (5.80) (9.37)
C. Change in the Fair Value of Assets:
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 175.30 183.50
Interest Income 12.44 11.93
Contributions by the Employer 5.69 11.70
Mortality Charges and Taxes (0.14) (0.13)
Benefits paid (24.58) (32.88)
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest Income - Gains/ (Loss) 0.37 1.18
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 169.08 175.30
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33. OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

6  Employee Benefits (Contd.) (% in lakh)

LI 2018‘?{;““%’ F“ndez?ms

D. Change in Defined Benefit Obligations :
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the beginning of the year 235.89 249.85
Current Service Cost 6.18 7.23
Past Service Cost = 3.76
Interest Cost 16.77 16.11
Benefits Paid (24.58) (32.88)
Remeasurements on obligation - (Gains)/ Loss (5.44) (8.18)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the end of the year 228.82 235.89

E. Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at the year end:
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations 228.82 235.89
Fair Value of Plan Assets 169.08 175.30
Liability /(Assets) recognized in the Balance Sheet 59.74 60.59

F.  Principal Actuarial Assumptions used :
Discounted Rate (per annum) Compound 7.60% 7.50%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets 1.50% 6.90%
Rate of Salary increase (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
Retirement Age ( Year) 60 60
e e

G. Major category of Plan assets as a % of the Total Plan Assets
as at the yearend :
Government of India Securities 0.00% 0.00%
High quality corporate bonds 0.00% 0.00%
Equity shares of listed Companies 0.00% 0.00%
Property 0.00% 0.00%
Special deposit scheme 0.00% 0.00%
Funds managed by the insurer 100.00% 100.00%
Others 0.00% 0.00%

H. Maturity analysis of the Benefit Payments :

Year 1 144.39 151.09
Year 2 11.38 14.74
Year 3 21.25 12.36
Year 4 11.16 26.30
Year 5 24.85 11.91
Next 5 Years 51.77 71.87
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33.  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

6  Employee Benefits (Contd.) (% in lakh)
. Gratuity (Funded)

Particulars 201819 201718

I.  Sensitivity analysis on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations:
Discount rate + 100 basis point 223.88 230.75
Discount rate - 100 basis point 234.31 241.57
Salary increase rate + 100 basis point 233.33 240.49
Salary increase rate - 100 basis point 224.69 231.65
Withdrawl rate + 100 basis point 228.79 236.01
Withdrawl rate - 100 basis point 228.67 235.76

Sensitivity analysis indicates the infulence of a reasonable change in certain significant
assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation (PVO) and aids in
understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying
one parameter at a time and studying its impact.

Disclosures for defined benefit plans based on actuvarial reports as on March 31, 2019

Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
2018-19 2017-18

Particulars

A.  Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss :
Current Service Cost 2.60 3.54

Acquisition (Gain)/Loss - -

Past Service Cost - -

Net Interest (Income)/Expense 1.95 1.92
Curtailment = -
Settlement = -
Remeasurements Cost/ (credit) for the year 0.14 (3.51)
Total Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss * 4.69 1.95

B.  Change in Defined Benefit Obligations :
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the beginning of the year 27.78 29.82
Current Service Cost 2.60 3.54
Interest Cost 1.95 1.92
Benefits Paid (3.53) (3.99)
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses 0.14 (3.57)
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations as at the end of the year 28.94 21.78

C.  Principal Actuvarial Assumptions used :
Discounted Rate (per annum) Compound 7.60% 7.50%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets NA NA
Rate of Salary increase (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
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33. OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
6  Employee Benefits (Contd.)

(% in lakh)

Particulars Leave Encashment (Non Funded)
2018-19 2017-18

D.  Maturity analysis of the Benefit Payments :
Year 1 11.92 12.80
Year 2 1.34 1.56
Year 3 3.02 0.93
Year 4 1.1 2.82
Year 5 3.30 1.19
Next 5 Years 12.52 12.25

G.  Sensitivity analysis on Present value of Defined Benefit Obligations: (Refer Note)
Discount rate + 100 basis point 21.70 26.66
Discount rate - 100 basis point 30.34 29.04
Salary increase rate + 100 basis point 30.15 28.86
Salary increase rate - 100 basis point 21.84 26.79

Sensitivity analysis indicates the infulence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present
value of obligation (PVO) and aids in understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one
parameter at a time and studying its impact.

*Included in “Salaries, Wages and Bonus” and “Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity and Other Funds” under “Employee benefit
expenses” on Note 27.

The expected return on Plan Assets is based on the actuarial expectation of the average long-term rate of return expected. The
discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields on Government bonds as at the balance sheet date.

NA represents the figures are not available in acturial reports.

7

Segmment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments":
Operating Segments:
a) Conveyor Belting

b) Wind Energy  c¢) Trading Goods

Identification of Segments:

The chief operating decision maker monitor the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss
and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segments have been identified on the
basis of the nature of products/services and have been identified as per the quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS.
Segment Revenue and Results:

The expenses and incomes which are not attributable to any business segment are shown as unallocated expenditure (net of
unallocated income).

Segment Assets and Liabilities:

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of property, plant and equipments,
trade and other recievables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents etc.

Segment liabilities primarily includes trade payables, borrowings and other liahilities.

Common assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to any of the segments are shown as a part of unallocated Corporate
assets/liabilities.
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33  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
7 Segment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments": (Contd.)

(a) Information about primary business segments :

S Conveyor Belting Wind Energy Trading Goods Unallocated Corporate Total Amount
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Segment Revenue

Sale and Services to External

customers 7,830.11 469.30 298.98 239.51 315.21 817.97 = - 8,444.30 5,226.78

Other operating revenue = - = - = - 112.10 695.39 112.10 695.39

F;’:s’:]’“ from operations 78301  4,169.30 298.98 23951 315.21 817.97 11210 §95.39| 8556.40| 592217

Less : Excise Duty = 298.25 = 298.25

Net Turnover 7,830.11 3,871.05 298.98 239.51 315.21 817.97 112.10 695.39 8,556.40 5,623.92

Segment Results (349.27) (438.08) 17.39 101.06 116.42 84.09 = - (61.46) (252.93)

lEJx”paJ:’S?:ed Corporate - - - - - - @u0y| (84|  (3009)|  (3496)

(349.27) (438.08) 171.39 101.06 116.42 84.09 (39.09) (84.96) (100.55) (337.89)

Interest Expenses - - - - - -1 (1,0347) (664.39)|  (1,034.71) (664.39)

Interest Income = - = - = - 730.61 607.97 730.61 607.97

Profit/(Loss) from _ B _ _ B B _ B _ B

investment

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (389.27)|  (438.08) 1M.39 101.06 116.42 84.00| (343.19)|  (141.36)|  (404.65)|  (394.31)

Income Tax - - - 166.97 182.31 166.98 182.31

Profit After Tax (349.27)|  (438.08) 1M.39 101.06 116.42 84.00|  (510.16)|  (32367)|  (571.63)|  (576.62)
(b) Other information :

Particulars Conveyor Belting Wind Energy Trading Goods Unallocated Corporate Total Amount
2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Segment Assets 3,788.13 3,327.94 443.07 462.38 95.57 113.78 = - 4,326.77 3,904.10
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - 22,276.60 19,078.26 22,276.60 19,078.26
Total Assets 3788.13 3,327.94 443.07 462.38 95.57 11378| 22,276.60| 19,078.26| 26,603.37| 22,982.36
Segment Liabilities (1,401.48) |  (1,545.88) (13.13) (16.99) (9.41) (60.29) - (1424.62)| (1623.15)
Unallocated Corporate Liabilities - - -| (10510.02)| (6,252.23)| (10,510.02)| (6,252.23)
Total Liabilities (1,401.48) |  (1,545.88) (13.73) (16.99) (9.41) (60.29)| (10,510.02)| (6,252.23)| (11,934.64)| (7,875.38)

Note: (i) Conveyor Belting segment includes manufacturing and sale of PVC Conveyor Belting.
(if)  Wind Energy Segment includes generation, supply and sale of Wind Power (Electricity).
(iii) Unallocated / Corporate Segment includes Corporate, Administrative and Financing activity.
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33 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

7 Segment Reporting disclosures as per Ind AS-108 "Operating Segments": (Contd.)
(c) Reconcilations of amounts reflected in the financial statements

(i) Reconcilation of assets (Z in lakh)
Particulars As at 5
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Segment operating assets 26,603.37 22,982.36
Total assets 26,603.37 22,982.36

(ii) Reconcilation of liabilities

Particulars As at L
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Segment operating liabilities 11,934.64 7,875.38
Total liabilities 11,934.64 7,875.38
(d) Information about secondary business segments :
As at As at

e March 31,2019 | March 31,2018

Revenue by geographical market
Sale of products

Domestic 3,968.82 2,475.91

Export 4,475.48 2,150.87
Total 8,444.30 5,226.78
Assets

Trade receivables (net of provision for doubtful debt)

Within India 1,213.66 992.52

Outside India 1,368.60 1,185.93
Total 2,582.26 2,178.45
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33 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

8 Details of loan given, investments made, guarantee or security provided covered under section 186 (4) of the Companies
Act, 2013 :
All loans, investments, guarantees and securities as disclosed in respective notes are provided for business purposes.

i)  Details of Loans given:

The particulars of loans given are as under: (% in lakh)
Name of the Loanee Loan given Loan refunded Amount of loan | Purpose of loan taken by the
oustanding on | loanee
31.03.2019
)

Elpro Estates Ltd. 3,560.99 3,560.99 —| General corporate purpose
(755.00) (755.00) (-

Elpro International Ltd. - 1.90 — | General corporate purpose
(790.00) (807.15) (7.90)

Pure Coke Ltd. 1,074.25 956.01 173.80 | General corporate purpose
(464.19) (651.13) (43.01)

P C Chanda & Co Pvt. Ltd. - 350.00 — | General corporate purpose
(100.00) () (350.00)

Espeea Promoters & Developers Pvt. Ltd. - 100.00 —| General corporate purpose
(50.00) (50.00) (100.00)

Aurangabad Auto Engineering Pvt Ltd 185.00 - 193.75 | General corporate purpose
@ ) &)

Meybuen Ventures Pvt Ltd 50.00 - 52.13 | General corporate purpose
) ) @)

Mudra Denim Pvt Ltd. 25.00 - 26.18 | General corporate purpose
@ ) W)

Next Generation Mobiles 200.00 200.00 ~ | General corporate purpose
=) () &)

Pahari Projects Pvt Ltd. 60.00 - 62.73 | General corporate purpose
=) ) =)

Orissa Steel Trading Corporation 150.00 - 160.46 | General corporate purpose
) ) W)

Shree Shyam Coal Co Ltd 13.00 13.00 — | General corporate purpose
=) ) W)
Total 5,318.25 5,187.90 669.05
(2,159.19) (2,263.28) (500.91)

Note: Figures in bracket relating to previous year.

(i) Details of Investments made :

The particulars of investments made are given under "Investment" under note no. 5.

(iii) Details of guarantee given and security provided :
The Company has not given any guarantee and has not provided any security during the year.

Annual Report 2018-19 139




Notes Forming Part of the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2019

33 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

9  Related party disclosures :
(a) Name of the related parties and description of relationship :
(i) Associate:
Pure Coke Limited

(ii) Enterprises where key management personnel and their relatives have substantial interest and /or significant
influence:
a) R.C.A. Limited
b) Elpro International Limited
¢) |GE (India) Private Limited
d) Elpro Estates Limited
e) Paradigm Finance Limited
f)  Dabri Properties & Trading Company Ltd.

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Mr. R. K. Dabriwala — Managing Director

(b) Details of transaction made with related parties during the year : (% in lakh)
Nature of transaction R.CA. Limited Pure Coke Limited | Elpro International | I.G.E. (India) Private | Elpro Estates Paradigm Finance | Dabri Properties& | Key Management
Limited Limited Limited Limited Trading Co. Limited
2018-19 | 2017-18 | 201819 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2017-18
Director Remuneration = - = - = - = - = - = - = -| 9188 9188
Interest on Loan
Received = -| 1394|4632 1.09 878 2156| 1391 3388 - = -| 2561 1503 = -
Paid 9.83 - = 6.10 = - = - -| 1445 n 2.83 = - = -
Interest received on Preference = - = - 48315 439.3 = - = - = - = - = -
Shares
Rent Received 030 0.30 = - = - = - = - = - = - = -
Sale of Investment in Shares = - = - = 2.50 = - = - = - = - = -
Dividend Income
On Preferencial Shares = - = -| 1800 18.00 = - = - = - = - = -
On Equity Shares 0.2 021 = - = - = - = - = - = - = -
Inter Corporate Deposit :
Loan Given = -| 107425| 46419 -| 790.00 -| 262.05|3560.99 | 755.00 = - -| 2n.00 = -
Repayment of Loan = -| 99570 | 1,652.56 190 | 80715 -| 3500356099 | 755.00 = - = = -
Loan Taken 2100.00 -| 49.00| T9.87 = - = - 223101 2650.00 [ 50.00 [ 50.00 = - = -
Loan Repaid 80.00 -| 4800| T8 = - = - | 224401 2650.00 | 14.00 - = - = -
Reimbursement of Expenses (Net) - - - - - - 2.28 151 - - - - - - - -
Balance Outstanding:
Loan Given = -| 17380| 8270 = 790 25897 239.57 = - = -| 307.58| 28453 = -
Loan Taken 2,020.00 - = - = - = - -| 1300 86.00| 50.00 = - = -
Dividend Receivable = - = -| 9967 8359 = - = - = - = - = -
Investment in preference share = - = -| 48315 439.23 = - = - = - = - = -
Reimbursement of Expenses = - = - = - 0.02 - = - = - = - = -

Note : (a) The transactions with related parties have been entered at amounts which are not materially different from those on normal
commercial terms.

(b) No amount has been written back/written off during the year in respect of due to /from related parties.

(c) The amount due from related parties is good and hence no pravision for doubtful debts in respect of dues from such related parties
is required.
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10  Financial instruments - Accounting, Classification and Fair Value measurements :

A. Financial instruments by category (% in lakh)

Particulars Refer March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
NoteNo. | FyTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised| FVIPL | FVTOCI | Amortised
Cost Cost

Financial Assets
Investments 5 —| 11,053.79] 5,569.68 8,974.88 4,831.53
Trade receivables 1 = -| 258226 - -| 217845
Cash and cash equivalents 12 = = 130.38 - - 220.41
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13 = = 24.62 - - 25.60
Loans 6 = -l 1,399.95 - -| 1,257.18
Other financial assets 7 - - 624.08 - - 551.64
Total —| 11,053.79( 10,330.98 —-| 8,974.88| 9,064.81
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 = -| 10,178.72 - -| 6,499.55
Trade payables 20 - -| 1,202.13 - - 1,212.30
Other financial liabilities 21 = = 13.17 - - 18.12
Total = - 11,394.02 - - 1729.97

B. Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
financial assets, short term borrowings from banks and financial institutions, trade payables and other financial liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Company uses the following fair value hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following tables provide the fair value hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on
a recurring basis:

(i) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis :

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2019

Financial Assets

At FVTOCI

Investment in equity intstruments 10,896.08 5,569.68 157.71 16,623.47
Total Financial Assets 10,896.08 5,569.68 157.71 16,623.47
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2018

Financial Assets

At FVTOCI

Investment in equity intstruments 8,832.34 4831.53 142.54 13,806.41
Total Financial Assets 8,832.34 4,831.53 142.54 13,806.41
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10  Financial instruments - Accounting, Classification and Fair Value measurements : (Contd.)

(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost (X in lakh)
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Name of the banks/entities [I;C:gl::f Fair Value ian::)yl::f -
Financial Assets
Investments 5,569.68 5,569.68 4,831.53 4,831.53
Trade receivables 2,582.26 2,582.26 2,178.45 2,178.45
Cash and cash equivalents 130.38 130.38 220.41 220.4
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 24.62 24.62 25.60 25.60
Loans 1,399.95 1,399.95 1,257.18 1,257.18
Other financial assets 624.08 624.08 551.64 551.64
Total 10,330.98| 10,330.98 9,064.81 9,064.81
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 10,178.72 10,178.72 6,499.55 6,499.55
Trade payables 1,202.13 1,202.13 1,212.30 1,212.30
Other financial liabilities 13.17 13.17 18.12 18.12
Total 11,394.02| 11,394.02 1,729.97 1,729.97

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities includes borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabiltiies. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include trade receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The management oversees these risks and appropriate financial
risk governance framework for the Group. The management provides assurance that the Group’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance
with the Group's policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist
team that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Group’s policy that derivatives are used exclusively
for hedging purposes and not for trading or speculative purposes .

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below :

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other risks, such as regulatory
risk and commodity price risk.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

To manage this, the Group enters into derivative contracts as and when required , in which it agrees to exchange,
at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an
agreed-upon notional principal amount.
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33 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)

11 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

(b)

(if)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Group’s foreign currency denominated borrowings. This foreign currency risk is covered by using
foreign exchange forward contracts.

Foreign currency sensitivity

1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will no material impact on Profit.

Unhedged Foreign Currency exposures are as follows :-

(% in lakh)

Nature Currency As at As at
March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018
Amount receivable on account of usD 12.77 12.41
sale of goods, loans and advances, SGD 6.12 5.64
interest, etc. CDN 6.16 6.02
AUD 7.95 6.14
Amount payable on account of usD 5.12 2.51
purchase of goods and services, GBP 0.04 0.13
loans and advances, interest, etc. CDN 0.69 1.36

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss.

The impairment for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each balance sheet
date.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, however, the Group continues
to attempt to recover the receivables. Where recoveries are made, these are recoginsed in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(i)

(ii)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed based on Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of 3 to 60 days.

An impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition,
a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in note no. 11.

Balances with banks

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed in accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 is the carrying amounts as stated in note no. 12 and 13.
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33 OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
11 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)
(¢) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash
credit facilities and short term loans.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payment :
(% in lakh)
SI. |Particulars Less than 1year | 1to 5 years >5 years Total
No.
A. |As at March 31, 2019
(i) |Borrowings 10,178.72 - - 10,178.72
(ii) | Other financial liabilities 1,202.13 - - 1,202.13
(iii) | Trade payables 13.17 - - 13.17
Total 11,394.02 - - 11,394.02
. | As at March 31, 2018
(i) |Borrowings 6,499.30 0.25 - 6,499.55
(ii) |Other financial liabilities 1,212.30 - - 1,212.30
(iii) | Trade payables 18.12 - - 18.12
Total 1,729.72 0.25 - 1,729.97

12 Additional information requirement as per Schedule |11 of the Companies Act, 2013

12.1 Inaccordance with Indian Accounting Standard 110 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, the Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Group include the financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate.

The subsidiaries and Associate considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are:—

Name of the Party & Nature of relationship Country of % Holding % Holding
Origin As at As at

March 31, 2019 | March 31, 2018

Subsidiaries

International Belting Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

Conveyor Holdings Pte Limited Singapore 100.00% 100.00%

International Conveyors America Limited, INC USA 100.00% 100.00%

Step-down subsidiary

International Conveyors Australia Pty Limited Australia 100.00% 100.00%

Associate of 100% Subsidiary

Pure Coke Limited India 33.67% 35.99%
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33  OTHER DISCLOSURES (Contd.)
12 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

12.2 Additional Information as per Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013

As at March 31, 2019
Net Assets, i.e. total assets . Share in other comprehensive | Share in total comprehensive
. By Share in profit or loss . ;
minus total liabilities income income
) As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
Name of the entity consolidated | (Rs.inlakh) | consolidated | (Zinlakh) | consolidated | (Tinlakh) | consolidated | (% in lakh)
net assets profit or loss other com- total com-
prehensive prehensive
income income
Parent
1 International conveyors limited 108.27% 15,881.91 (96.26%) (550.26) 71.64% (28.70) 94.66% (578.96)
Subsidiaries
1 International Belting Limited 3.38% 495.86 3.17% 18.13 28.36% (11.36) (1.M%) 6.77
o Conveyor Holdings Pte Limited and its (068%) | (156674)|  (3379%)|  (193.19) . . 5% | (19309)
subsidiary
3 International Conveyors America Limited, INC (0.97%) (142.30) 26.88% 153.64 - - (25.12%) 153.64
Minority Interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - -
Associate of 100% subsidiary (investment as per
equity method)
1 Pure coke limited - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% -
TOTAL 100.00% 14,668.73 100.00% (571.63) 100.00% (40.06) 100.00% (611.69)

Note: Figures are after elimination of related party transactions between entities considered for consolidation.

13 Previous Years Figures

The previous year's including figures as at the date of transition have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified
wherever necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year including figures as at the date of transition are
included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other
disclosures relating to the current year.

For G. P. Agrawal & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. - 302082E

. M.P.Jhunjhunwala R. K. Dabriwala
CA. Ajay Agrawal Director Managing Director
Partner DIN No. 00567070 DIN No. 00086658
Membership No. 17643
Place of Signature: Kolkata Neha Khandelwal A. K. Gulgulia
Date: May 30, 2019 Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2015-2019
Z in lakhs

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

TURNOVER 10044.41 7766.58 4764.12 4448.01 7665.40
OPERATING PROFIT 1099.90 127.06 561.08 41,57 (181.11)
DEPRECIATION 480.05 336.46 291.41 249.27 209.18
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 619.85 (209.40) 269.67 (207.70) (390.29)
TAX 192.25 (80.98) 136.82 158.02 159.99
PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX 427.60 (128.42) 132.85 (365.72) (550.28)
PROPOSED DIVIDEND PAYOUT 203.10 40.66 40.62 40.69 40.69
RETAINED EARNINGS 224.49 140.07 205.91 (199.85) (787.05)
EQUITY 8273.58 10561.73 13266.72 16501.68 15882.01
BORROWINGS 5834.64 5617.60 4025.87 6504.67 10153.85
GROSS FIXED ASSETS 6782.25 2219.76 2241.95 2291.50 2285.96
DEBT EQUITY RATIO 1:1.42 1:1.88 1:3.30 1:2.54 1:1.56
EARNING PER SHARE (3) 0.63 (0.19) 0.20 (0.54) (0.81)
PROPOSED DIVIDEND PER SHARE (3) 0.25 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05
NET WORTH PER SHARE (3) 12.26 15.65 19.65 24.45 23.53

Figures on or after 2015-16 are IND AS compliant and may not be fully comparable to previous years.

SHARE DATA (As on 31.03.2018)

NO. OF SHARES ISSUED : 67500000
MARKET CAPITALISATION (3) : 1795500000
NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS : 1834
LISTING AT : Kolkata & Mumbai Promoters

Share Holding Pattern
Promoters B 47.29%
Public 52.711%




(1
International Conveyors Limited
10, Middleton Row, Kolkata - 700 071
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